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AFTERNOON SESSION 2:30 p.m,

{Present: Senatorsg Fulbzight, Carlscn and Laugche)
The Chairman. The Committee will come to oxdez.
Mr. Secretary, there are one 0r two statements in
your own statement I would like to have developed a bit,
for clarification,
On page 12, at the bottom of the page of the mimecgraphed

statement you say as follows:

"Proponents within the Communist bloc of an aggressive course

must not be encouraged by signs of weakness on our part.
Pioponents of a peaceful course should be encouraged by
cur veadiness €0 get on with outstanding international
business in a sober and rational mannexn.“

Inte which of these groups do you include Mr.
Rhrushchev?

STATEMENT OF HONORABLE CHRISTIAN A. HERTER
SECRETARY OF STATE (RESUMED)

Secretary Hertexr. That I think would be very difficult
to0 answex categorically.

(At this point, Senators Gore anﬁ Hickenlooper
entered the hearing room.) |

There have been a good many estimates made as to whether
oI not he really means scme of the things that he has
sald with regaxd to peaceful coexistence, with regard
to disarmament and other matters. There is another group

that feels that this is a front for the same power line
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that Stalin used to take.
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s-take 13-=2
stadk I dont't think it is possible yet to answer that

categorically.
T think that eventg are likely to show which of those
C:} groups he belongs to.

The Chairman. Who did you have In mind when you wrote
that? Maybe you can't cagegorically for all time designate
hiwn, butrwhaﬁ haz beén your view and the view df the Department
as to which group he beliongs in. I think that is rather
imporcant as to how we treat him. Is it in our interest
to discourage him? If he was a mewber of the aggressilve
courge, I suppose it would be. If he is a member of those
who are proponents 6f the peaceful course, then it would be

C:) to our -advantage to encourage or be cooperative within
iimits. I wondered why you put that in there if you didn't
have some idea of who Goes belong to these groups or howf
it is constituted.,

(At this point, Senator Mansfield entered the hearing
OO, ) |

Seeretary Herter. What I was trying to describe here
was in effect a wmiddle course. Insofar as Mr. Khrushchev
1§ concerned, I think those who have dealt with him directly

(:} are convinced that he ia genuinely in favor of a disarmament
program, that he genuinely wants, for the sake of developing
the economy of Russia, a reductién both in expense from a

monetary point of view and from a human point of view, of
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the great burden of armaments.

(At this point, Senator Lavsche entered the hearing
00Mm. )

Secretary Herter. Certalniy there I would put him in
the second category. Hls more recent behavior, however, has
shaken my belief fhat this is entirely genuine, and, as I say,
I think that only the events of the next few months and
possibly even of the next few years can give a {inal answer
to what you ‘have asked.

The Chairman. Can you identify any other wmembers
or any peopie you had in nind in these groups?

Secretary Herter., No. I would rather have those who are
real Russlan experts do that kind of identification, those
who are famllilar with the individuals, more familiar than
I am.

There is no questlion but what there are stiil ==

The Chairman. Would you care to have Mr. Bohien
comnent on this question?

Secretary Herter, I would be very glad to have him,if
you wish to.

The Chairman. It would be very good to have him comment.
He 1s recognized, 1s he not, as one of our best Russilan

experts?
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Would you caxe to cemmenﬁ‘on thig, Mr. Bohlen?

_Mr. Bohlen. Mr. Chaizman, my experience hés beén it is
not always possible to identify tiend in the Soviet Union
with individuals. As the Secietary said earlier we
literally know nothing of what goes on in the

hierarchy. My impression of the statement the Secretary

made is that it is possible to detect trends. You cannot

identcify people with'them, My experience with the Soviet
officials is that they follow whatever the agreed line is,
whether it is hard oz whether it is soft, with great
canéistencyo and they just do not xeveal sufficiently to
any foreigner what their inner thoughts are to identify one
individual with one trend or another. But I think the indi-
cations are that both trends exist.

The Chairxman. Well, don‘t you think we know moze
about Mr. XKhrushchev than any other one. More of us have
seen him. He has been about more tharn any other. Don’t
you have any view aslto which of these groups Mr . Khrushchev
would be identified with?

Mra-ﬁohlen. Wéllo my acquaintanceship with MY,
Khrushchev was when I was in there as Ambassadoyr when he
was not quite as prominent as he is now. I would wmezely
say that he, along with them are excellent actors,

and are able to maintain whatever the

common line ig in their dealings with foreigners. I think
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also there is a gquestion of time. I think as the events of
Paris showed, that there have been certain sghifts of emphasis
ingide the Soviet Unlon which were manifested in part by
what they did in Paris. | o

{at this point, Senatoys Williams and Wiley entered
the heaiing zO0m.,

Therefore, it is conceivakle that Mr.Khrushchev would
have been entixely serious in the line he was pursuing prior
©C Paris, and be edqually serious in pursuing one diametrically
opposice to it.

The Chairman. If I may interpolate, do you mean that
prior to the U~2 incident that My. Khrushchev may have been
identified with the second group, that is proponents of a
peaceful course.

Mr. Bohlen. I would not segregate out the U-2 incident
alone, Mr. Chairman. I think as put in the Secretaxy’s
statement there seemed to us to be three elements involved
in this watter and I think it is Jdifficult to assess the value
of each. But certainly I would say his doubt as to the
puccess fxom his point of view of the sumnlt conference, the
fact that I feel a logical deduction that some of the views
voiced by the Chinese Communists had supporters within the
Soviet hierarchy and the U-2 incident brought about this

change.

T have no difficuliy =
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The Chairman. I didn®t wish to make you review all that
was 8aid thexe. I was merely trying ©o £ind the inner meaning
of this particular statement. I thought that I could elicitc

some clarification since many of us don’t know about these
proponents of these courses or any groups of pecple.

Mr. Bohlen. The answer@ Mr . Chairman, is that I think
ve don't know. That you cannot tell whether X, ¥, o¥ 2 in
the Soviet hierarchy, what partvicular line he advocates
kecause he never takes any difference, even a shade of
difference publicly, with what is the agreed line., It is
guite impossible, I believe for anybeody tc tell whe, within
the leading group stands for one trend or the cther. Vou

<:> can only detect from extermnal evidence that there appear
to be certain divergent trends and the individuals may not
rYemain the same.

The Chairman. Thank you wvery much. One cother statement,
MEOISeexetary, ocn page 5, peint 2: "The decision not ©o
suspend this program of f£flights, as the summit meeting
apprcached, was a sound decision."”

Can you tell us who made that decision and when and
of the circumstances?

C:) Secretary Herter. That is a decision that I think has been
a decision that has carried over the whole four year period.
Hexe, sir, we get into certain technical aspects of
when these f£lights would properly be conducted and could

not ke conducted, but I think for technical reasons
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had better be kept in executive session.

The f£inding of a good time of a £light of this kind in
relation to current events is almost impossible if you |
know in advance that it is going te fail.

The real issue was how urgent was the information
and is cthere any one time that is more favorable than anothex?
From a technical point of view it wag our time was more
favorable at that time than another. From a diplomacic
point of view, it seemed to me that with the President
scheduled to go to Russia later, with the fact he had the same
difficulty, wvhen you had Khrushchev here you had the same
difficulties, in effect you would run intc one time after
ancther where diplomatically it would have been a bad
cime.

The Chalrman. I don’t think I make myself clear. I
understood from your previous statement and othexs that the
progyam was agreed upon, and it was running along without
being suspended. But this statemént seems to leave the implie
cation that a gpecific decision was taken not to suégend
them in view of the conference app::oachinge

Was such a decision taken?

Secretary Herter, That I can’t tell you. I was not
a party to that.

The Chairman, Well, this says "The decision not to

suspend this program of £lights, as the Summit meeting
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approached, was, a sound decigion.”

=i

jas there ény ..d,e;:;’»s‘ion caken, not to suspend it? |
Secretary Hexrter. I know that when Che matter came
hefore me, vhich was some Cime pxewioﬁs from the point of
view of tﬁe cbntinﬁation Of theApxograma when conditions
were appropriate, I did not interpose any objection
P it because 0f any diplomatic eveant that was coming
UR o
- The Chairman. is it fair o Say then no gpecific
decision noc o sﬁspemd them wés caken? Iﬁ was allowed
O go along wichout any decision being taken to suspend them.
- Secretary 'Ifle.:cte:e. T think that is éar:t:ect.
Thg Chairman. ?hexefqreg the other way around is
that no posiﬁive decisiocn was taken not o suspend them,
is éhat correct?
Secretary Hexter. That is zight.
The Chaizman,: ... That statement, I think, needs
- clarification. I think to me; it means that at some point
prioxr o May'l@ a specific decision was taken not to
suspend them in view of the summit. ZIen’t that a iegitimate

)

interpiet

o

ation of that sentence?

Secretary Hexrter. I think that is correcc. May I read
what the Presgident said on that subjectc: He said "As to
the timing, the'question was really whether to halt the pxogram'
and thus forege the gathering of ;mpcktant'i oy

information that was essentcial and that was likely to be
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unavailable at a later date. The program went foyxward.”
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The Chairman. Then that decision was made by the
President. |

‘Secretary Herter. Oh, he was cervainly consulted with
regard to the continvation of the program.

The Chairman. Do you know when that was made?

Secretary Herter. No,

The Chairman. Was it prior to May 1st?

Secretary Herter. I couldn't tell you.

The Chairman. Mr. Secretary, do you'know whether there
was a moritorium on these flights during the meeting at'Camp
David?

Secretary Heréer. No. As far as I know, that question
never arose.

The Chairman, So that there was rot, as far as you
knot?

Secretary Herter. _As far as I know, there was not.

The Chairman. I belleve that with regard to this
matter about Mr, Lincoln White did not know that Powers might
be alive, that would be with regard to the last question
before we recessed, Did Mr, Hagerty know whether or not he
was at that point?

Secretary Herter. That I will have %o ask Mr, Dillon %o
answer, I have no direect informatiocn,

Me, Dillon. I have no way of knowing whether My, Hagerty

knew or not. In %the ordinary course of business, a telegram
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v #-14 such as the one which informed us of this rumor -- its only

52 a rumor that we had received through other diplomats in
Moscow -« such a telegram would have been btransmitted for
<:> information to the White House staff,

Whether Mr., Hagérty knew about it or not, I don't
know.

The Chairman, Mr. Secretary, was any effort made on
the part of our Ambassadors or anyone from the Department
after the incident, to pursue Mr, Knrushchevig feelings?

Was anyone instructed to approach him and express any
regret or in any way to reconcile him, to forgive or overlook
this ineident?

Q:D - (At this point in the proceedings, Senator Morse enters
the hearing room.)

Secretary Herter. No, Idon't know of any such thing,

The Chairman, No approach was made?

Secretary Herter. No.

The Chairman, Mr. Secretary., what were the considerations
which led to the decision, not only ©0 assume responsibility
for the £light, but to lmply that the flights would continue
in the future?

<:> Secretary Herter, I have to take responsibility for the
statement that was interpreted and if I may, I would like to
read you exactly what was said on that score,

This 1s a statement that was interpreted that we were
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going to continue the flights:
"The Government of the United States would be derelict
N to its responsibilities, not only to the American people, but
LWAEED to free people everywhere 1f it did not, in the absence of
Soviet cooperation, take such measures as are possible uni-
laterally to lessen and to overcome this danger of surprise
attack.

"In fact, the United States has not and does not shirk
this responsibility."

That is the statement that was interpreted that we were
going to continue the flights, and 1%t secems to me it was a
pretty far-fetched interpretation.

Q:D | The Chairman. Then do you mean that that statement, that
you did not intend to convey the view or the posslbility that
the flights would be continued, is that correct?

Secretary Herter. No, what I was saying there was Just
what I have testified to today; that from the point of view of
our own interests and that of the whole free worlid, it is
essentlal for us to do whatever we properly can in order to
acquire information to avoid surprise attack or to be prepared

for it.
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1 COr - The Chairman. But in view of that gtatement, do you think
o 1A that Mr., Khrushchev could accept it and continue the
conference?
(ij Secretary Herter. Yes, I certainly do if he had
wanted to. |

The Chalrman. Do you think our President would accept
such a statement from any other power?

Secretary Herter. If he wanted to go to a conference?
Certainly.

The Chairman. My time is up.

Senavor Wiley?

Senator Wiley. DNow in relatlon to that last question,

(fj the President suggested time and time again open skies
arrangement, hasn't he?

Secretary Herter. Yes.

Senator Wiley. That means that pianes would be flying
over our country and over every other country where it is
necessary. Again, I go to the subject that I think is most
important, because some guoted and I quoted on the fioor of
the Senate the other day the bibiilcal verse that a 1ittile
child shall lead them. I had a group of children from Oshkosh,

| 6:) Wisconsln, that I was talking to. After I taiked to them,
| I opened myself to questions. One of these giris said,

"Senator, if we stop taking these flights, how are we going

To get the information that is going on back of the Irocn

Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3



Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3
hRagy

Curtain?”

Weli, I think all America 1s asking that question,
and I am savisfied that if we realists, ag I think we are
hecoming more and wmore, that we are not goling o go up ©
lot of biind alleys about this and that. and about wi " wag
or what wasn!'t said, we are going to face the situwaticn head
on and simplﬁ say we want to be adegquate and alert and we
want the XKremiin to know the facts as they have now for,

I think about, three and a-half years, as I think the facts

are that we have been putting these pianes over. Khrushchev
knew it at the time that he was up at Camp David, and certalniy
knowing could have interferred with him hoiding the meeting

if he wanted to, having the knowledge then. Do you think my
conclusiona are correct in that respect?

Secretary Herter. I do.

Senator Wiley. I didn't get the import of the questions
when I came in that apparently referred to some different
groups. What is the name of the young man that defectved the
other day? I guess that is what you call 1t, He testifiled
on one of the -

Senator Lausche. Meet the Press.

Senator Wiley. Meet the Press, It iz a long Russian
nrame. I put what he sald into the record today. But one
of the important things he brought out, and I would ilke

to get the former Ambassador’s attention on this, ws that
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there is a group of young people growing up in Russia

that have different ideas, and he was about to go into detail
on it when time ran out. But among other things, he is the
one that sald, and this 1s important, he said some two years
ago that he didn't think -- well, the time I haven!'t got,

hut some wonths égo he said that Karushchev and the powers

in being would not permit the President %o come to Russia,
They would find some excuse.

Now, that is all in what he said over the wire here
a coqpie of weeks ago. That confirms, I presume,your own
ildea that when Khrushchev came to Paris, it was already
declided that he was going to thﬁow the bombshelig and he
would refuse the invitation and so forth, is that right?

Secretary Herter. That iz right.

Senator Wiley. So this 1s something that didn't result
from the shooting down or the downing of the piane.

I want to ask you a question. Have you any definite
information as to whether or not this young Powers is alive?

Secretary Herter., No, sir. We have no ’information other
than that which the Russians have furnished to us.

Senator Wiley. If that plane had been shot down, do you
think the instruments that he had with him would have remained
intact?

Secretary Herter., There, sir, I am not skiiled enough

in the technique of shotting down pianes. But I should think
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it is very doubtful if he was hit by a rocket whether either
he or the plane would have come down intact.
Senator Wiley. Is there any thought that perhaps they
have the plane? They clalm they have the instruments
and they have shown something which washit the plane. Do you
think they have that intact?
Secretary Herter. They have shoun a later photograph
cf a plane which thbse who buiit the plane feel is the
eiane 1tself, They have algo shown pieces of the plane
in Gorky Park in Moscow when they invited all the digpicmats
to come and iook at it, and I think our people "<l that that
is a genlune part of theplane.
Senator Wiley. I want to ask the sormer Ambassador -—-
-8 it true that the youth 1in Russ4, the new class of youth
is gyowingup llke this feliow fald, that someone sald if
he wore privileged to carry on that answer he would have
sald they'are not satisfied with thelir standard of 1iving,
they are not satisficd with the littie opportunity they have
to express themwseives in the political 1ife of Russia? Do
you know whethei ibat would be true or not?
Mr, Bohlemr I think it 1s a falr assumption, Senator.
Jf courue, as you know, the possibiiities for contacts in
there du~ing the pericd I was there were considerably less than
they are now. The country ig still totally controiled by

the wechanism of the Communist Party of the Soviet Union.
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Theﬁ control all modes of expression by press, meetings, or
anything else, so it is very difficult to get any overt
signs of the feelings of thé youth or any other section of
the population.
But there are certaln lndlcations that the youth are
iooking forward at some time in the fubure %o considerabiy
- different circumstances., They hope for bettef material conditions
and also undoubtedly hope for a peried when they wliil have
more freedom of expression and more abllity to particlpate
in the politic&l iife of their country.
But this is very hard to document because people do

not taik openly and freely. in the Soviet Union.
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. Benator Wiley. Well, you know that the ferment generally
is all ovexr this world. You know that the President of
V%izkey has beern kicked cut. You saw that today, and you .
know what is happening elsewhere. Is there any reason why
that yeast or ferment should not be operating in Russia
among the youngstexs?’

M. Bohlen. There is no reason why it should not be
and it is a logical agsumption it is. But I should also say
that the contrxols in a scciety like the Soviet Union are
very tight indeed and I have seen no sign that those
controls are breaking down or weakening to the point
where the party is not in complete centzcl of the situation.
They are able to stifle, if vou will, or held in check
this ferment due to the nature of their system.

Senatoxr Wiley. Out of the two hundred miliion Russians
how many 0f Them do you think belong to the Communist
Paxty?

My, Bohlen. I think the latest figure is somewhexre
in the neighborhcod of 8 million.

Senatoxr Wiley. Thank youw. That is all.

The Chairman. The Senator from Montana?

Senator Mansfiela? Mr. Secretary, it has been reported
that at the House hearings, you said there werxe indicapions
that even before May 6 the Russians planned to scutﬁlev.

the ¢onference.
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Now, it seems to me if we are going to estimate the
impoxrtance of the U-2 incident in the collapse of the summit,
we need to fix the date when these indications in any
significant fashion began to appear. I would appreciate
then in the interest of saving time, yes Or no answers
O certain questions which I am about to ask unless
there is a need of an elaboration.

The first guestion: -Are you aware whether any member
of the Cabinet ox the President had any reason to believe
on May 15 when Khyughchev made his demands for an apology
and so foxth, that hé would come to Paris and leave as he
did.

Secretary Hevter., No.

Senatox Maﬁsfielde Were thexe any indications that
Khrushchev planned to scuttle the conference before the U=2
plane was shot down on May 1%

5eczetamy Hezter. No,

Senator Mansfield., Did Khrushchev's Baku speech
ptecede or follow Mr. Dillon’s speech to the AFL~CIO
Convention?

Secretary Herter. It followed it.

Senator Mansfield. Would you classify Mr. Dillom's
speech as very much in the spirit of Camp David or would
you say it was an excellent, forthright and anti~-Communist

stactement gsomewhat oblivious to the splrit of Camp
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David, the kind 0f speech which any official of the State
Department might have made before that historic meeting?
Secretary Herter. That I can’t gualify with a ves oxr no
answey, Senato¥,
Senator Mansfield. VYou can to intc detail there.
Secretary Herter. I would say this, that Mr. Dillon’s
speech was almost a reguirement as an answer to the
allegations that had been made by Mr. Khrushchev against
Adenauver and the Germans and his continued repetition
which I have given the chronology of, of the fact that they
were going to take this unilateral position sooner or later with-
out its being an absolute ultimatumon the subject of Bexrlin,
Cexrmany.
Sena® r Mansiield. In other words, Mr. Secretazy,
speeches which vou and My Dillon made were a counteraction
to the gradual hardening of Mr. Khiushchev's speeches
in the period preceding that?
Secretary Herter. EBntirely.
Senator Mansfield, Did Secretary Dillon propose that
a U=2 £liight be undericaken prior to the summit confezence?
My. Dillon. Ko.
Seﬁatox Mansfield. My. Dillen, as acting Under Secxetary,
were you aware befozehand of the scheduling of the U=2
£light over the Soviet Union on May 17

Mr. Dillon., Ko, I was not awave of it.
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S I was aware that there was a program

of Elights that might take place at some time when the weather was

¥

ight but I think I was ipformed of that maybe a menth or. itwo
before this actual time, and I had pothing to do with it after-
wavds because I didn®t in the ordinary course of my duties.
Senator Mansiield. chx knowledge was, in effect, general
knowledge?
Mx. Dilion., Yes.
Senator Mansfield. Mr. Herter happening to ke out of
the countyry at the time was, I assume, unaware of any specific
£light but perhaps had general knowledge that these flights
were being undertaken and had beem over a pericd of years.
Secretaxry Hevter. The fivst knowledge I received was
when I was in Ankava, I didn’t know there was a £light
under way. All I heavd was this same report that a plane
was down,
Senator Mansfield. Now, both of you have had genexal
knowledge of this: Would it be a falr assumption to
3ay., despite the fact that the President underteook, in a2
certaln sense, personal responsibility for this particular
€light, that he, too, likewise, had only general knowledge
but that because of his position as the Chief of State,
he would be held respongible under any circumstances
because ¢f his position of responsibility?

Secretary Hextcer. That is coxrect,
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.. Might I just qualify one thing? .When you say_he was
familiar with this particular flight and his timing, so
far as I know 2ll of us were familiar with alternate posgi~
bilities of flights but not this particular €light as such.

Senator Mansfield. That would apply to the Depariment
of State and the President.

Secretary Herter. That is correct.

Senator Mansfield, From what legislation ox exeﬁuti?e
ordexs or both, was the autheority for these £lights of
deep penetration derived?

Secretary Hentexr., Well, Presumably from the asck that I
have here before me —=— I am told that this applied to two
specific acts. The one that I am pParticulariy familiar
with, that I had a moment ago is the one creating the
Centxal Intelligence Agency. The othey is the National
Security Act,

Senator Mansfield., Would it be possible to have
coples for the zecord at this poinc?

Secretary Herter. Ves.

Senator Mansfield., Mr. Chaizman, I ask that they be
included in the record at this point.

The Chaixman. Without objection it is so oxdezed,

Senatox Mansfield., Mr. Secretary, by what authority
have these f£lights now been suspended?

Secretary Hexrtez. Senator, I have now got before me the
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National Secuzity Ack of 1947, and if you wish me to
read the .pertipent paragraph I will be glad to do sQ... ...

... Senator Mamsiield.  No, I would just like to have the pez-
tinent paris incorporated in the executive recoxd.

Secretary Hexter. Right. . . _ . . ..

Senatoy Mansfield. Now the question to repeat, by what
authority have these flights now been suspended? =

Seczétaxy Hexter. By dizection of the President.

Senator Mansfield. By a presidential divective.

Could we have a copy of that for the recoxrd?

Secretary Hexter. VYes, I assume SO0. I don’t know
whether it was given in writing o¥ whether it was done by
woxd ©of mouth.

Senatox Mansfield. Well, will you look into it
and see what you can do to comply with the request?

Secretary Herter. Yes.

Senator Mansfield. Will this ordex suspending the
£lights automatically remaln in force after President
Eisenhower leaves office and until it is superseded by
another ovder of some future President?

Sacretary Herter., It could be. The bPresident’s
responsibility as dommandex in Chief which gives him
the right to give an order of this kind would, of course

expire with him. It would only be through some treaty

cbligation that there would be a binding commitment on the
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part of the United States to carry beyond his term.

Senator Mansfield. Do I undexstand you correqely then,
o state, that this oxder would auteomatically die with the
leaving of office by President Eisenhcwexg.and become
effective again would have to bé once again initiated by
the next President?

Sécxetaxy Herter., I think so. I believe anotheyx
President would be free to do as he sees f£it,

(At this point. Senator Humphiey entered the
hearing room.)

Senator Mansfield. Have Russian experts in the executive
branch suggested the possibility that Khrushchevis position.
at home may have become seriously undermined?

Secretary Rerter. Yes.

Senatozx Mansfielaa Do you believe that the U-~2 may have
been a contributing factor to this undermining?

Secretary Herter., It may have been, May I elaborate
on that?

It may have been in the sense that it must have been
a great shock to both the military and to the civilian leaders
in Russia to find that they had been ags open as they were
o such a long period of time.

Senator Mansfield. And to him as well.

Secretary Herter, To him as well.

Senatoy Mansfleld., If Karushchev should be forced ocut of
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power, ig it .fi:.hei.m..th;mkigzg that his .-,,.suqce.ssqr@, the Russian
experts in the Depaxtment, that his succesor, is likely .
o be a man more ameaable to friendly and peaceful dealings
with the West? R

.. .Becretary Herter. That. sixr, I cannot answer categorically.
I think that thatis a pure matter of guesswork.

Senator Mansfield. A1l vight. .

What, in the view of our Russlan experts is the most
probable coalition of influential foreces in the Sovielt union
and in wozxld Communism that could bring about Khrushchev’s
downfall? |

Secretazy Hextexr. There, sirg I am afraid of my own know-
ledge I could not answer that. If you would like fox
Mrg‘aohlen 0 answey that, he is as good an authority as we
khave on the svbject.

Senator Mansfield, 1If you will, Mzr. Bohlen, but before
vou do, I would like to thfcw out indications that perhaps
the military, the Chinese Communists and foxces c¢f that
kind might be considexed.

M, gohz.enn Senatox, I honestly im all sincerity
it is not QOS$ible to answer that question. I think in
events dealing with the Soviet Union in view of the secrecy
and general secrecy prevailing in the Communist Bloc it is
cnly aftexr the events that you can hope ©© trace them

back and see what particular influences have seemed to
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have brought about given decilsions.. There is litezally no

way inMWhiCh.ﬁwfpxeignewﬂgan ascextain.what.the“vaxying
degrees of influence of all factogs which go into the
making of any particular event. If I might I will give .
you one i11usﬁxation,of_aecxecyq I was not there bhut in
June 1957 for ten days the Presidium of the Central Commitiee
‘and the Centyral Commitlee itself met‘in a viclent inner
10w which resulted in the cxpulsion from both of those badies
of Molotov, Kaganovich, Malenkov and several others.

This went on foxr ten days in Mescow and no foreigner
in the Capltal an&rmighty few Russians knew anything about
it,

We had trained obkservers there. There was an extremely
alert U.S. press corps and not cne of them got any inkling
of this major development. This I merely cite to show the
degree of secrecy and if you are trying te get these
things you are in truth looking into a crystal ball and
a very cloudy one .at that.

Senator Mansfield. What yvou have said, Mr. Bohlen,
is a reinforcement of thoughtsz you have previously
stated in response to quegtcions propounded to you by the
Senatory from Wlisconsin.

Mr. Bohlen. —~  That’s xight, sir.

Senator Mansfield, And once again that secrecy is 60 great

there that it is impossible for a Westexner te f£ind oub
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what goes on in many instances until after the fact is
acconplished.
Senator Mansfleld. Iﬁwit‘the_v;ew of the expezts in
(o the Department, the Rusgian experts, that Khrushchev, even if
he remains in power will now take a harder line, a reversion
to cold war type tactics in dealing with the Western
natlons.
Mr. Bohlen. The lindications at present ave, and
I am speaking a3t present, that this not necessarily will be
20,
I think we can expect a propaganda campaign. The
indication from his own gtatements and from such infovmation as
€:> we have received fxom Moscow, is that there seems to be
ne determined policy te return to the -

depths 0f the cold war at this tire.
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T;16 Senator Mansfield. Would you say that 1f that reversion

Cantor
g1

i

does take place, taking the opposite tack from what you have

just said, and is pushed by the Kremlin or Khrushchev or his

‘:) successor, that it will make more difficult the malntenance of
peace?

Mr. Bohlen. It would i1f it returns to a line that we
would call the lowest phase of the cold war, it most certainly
would, Senator. However, there are degrees'in this thing of
return to the cold war situation which are ilmpossible to assess
and which might not materially increase the danger of war. But
if it went all out, sealed off the Soviet Union and the
Communist bloc from contact with the outside worid, attempted

@:3 to exert pressures wherever they thought they could do so, I
think undouvtedly a much more dangerous world situation would
be created.,

Senator Mansflield., Mr. Chalrman, I have other questions
but I dontt want to take too much time.

The Chairman. Senator Hiclkenlooper?

Senator Hickenlooper. I don't have any questions at
this tilme.,

The Chairman, Senator Humphrey, did I overlook you?

<:> Senator Humphrey. I came 1n late, Senator. If any other
Senator wants to go, 1t is all right.
The Chairman. Senator Morse, are you ready?

Senator Morse, I will yleld to Senator Humphrey.
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- Senator Humphrey. If the question I ask, Mr. Secretary,
has already been asked; just brush it aside. I don't want %o
take any of your time on that.

Did anyone ask as to whether or not you had any personal
knowledge of the U-2 flight?

Secretary Herter, Of the program?

Senator Humphrey. No, of the particular flight,

Secretary Herter., It was included, I said it was included --
I am sure it was included in a group of flights that I had been
asked whether I had any obje ctions to them.

Senator Humphrey. If you wanted to, could you have
effectively vetoed such a policy?

Secretary Herter. No, I could only have given my advice
to the President.

Senator Hﬁmphrey‘ Would the Vice President be aware of
these declsions?

Secretary Herter. I think that in the matter of the
National Securlity Council, he was aware of the program in the
larger sense. I doubt if he was familiar wilth any of the
Individual flights as such, but he may have bheen.

Senator Humphrey. The reason I asked that guestion was
¢hat the Vice President intimated on a televisiqn program, I
believe the day before the President annoﬁnced in Paris, that
the flights should continue, and the next day the President

announced that he had already cancelled them.
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The Vice President sald they would continue, and the next
day the President announced that they had been suspended,

What I am asking is, would the Vice President, as a member
of the Security Council, have any opportunity of knowing the
decislon that had been made by the President?

Secretary Herter. There, the days followed S0 quickly
one on another that I just couldn’t answer that, whether that
opportunity would have bheen offered or not.

Senator Humphrey. Let me see if I can -~ what I am trying
to get at is the policy making machinery.

We have a Subcommittee, as you know, that is studying the
policy making machinery of the government, the Jackson Sub-
committee. | |

I am a member of that Subcommittee. We had, recently
before the Subcommittee, Mr. Kendall. We have had many of the
prominent officials of government and former officials of
government,

The program of the flights, the reconnaisance flights,
was an established program, apparently was agreed upon by the
Securitj Council, is that correct?

Secretary Herter. The Security Council was aware of 1it,
yes.

Senator Humphrey. The Vice Presildent 1s a member of the
Security Council?

Secretary Herter, Yes,
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Senator Humphrey. If the Vice Presldent states on a
television program that he understood that the flights would
continue, yet the President announced the next day in Paris,
that as of the previous Thursday they had already been suspended,
do you think there was any lack of communication between the
responsibile officlals of thls government?

Secretary Herter. There, sir, I am trying to think of the
dates.,

The Thursday on whilch the President gave that order was
the day that I went to Paris. I went %o Paris that night.

The President followed two nights later and whether or
not in that two day interval anything had been distributed with
regard to that order, I just don't know.

Senator Humphrey. Do you have any changed views; Mr.
Secretary, as to the value of the so-called Summitry diplomacy as
a result of this recent meeting?

Secretary Herter. I think as a method of carrying out
negotiations it has taken a hard knock.

Senator Humphrey. Have you any idea as to how we are
going to proceed in the months ahead? I heard the President?’s
address, It was a good address. He gave a good accounting.

He talked about the necesslity of maintaining our -- I believe
the word was business like relationships, or at least normal
relationships insofar as we can -~ with the Soviet Unilon.

Is there any projected plan as to how we will proceed with
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our contacts with the Soviet Union?

For example, we have the Gneva Conference still in
session on the nuclear testing. I suppose the Disarmament
Conference is 8till a realilty.

Is there to be any adjustment in these conferences, any
changes? Are they to proceed according to the past?

Secretary Herter; Yes, the President, I think made that
very clear in his statement.

Senator Humphrey. Are there any plans for any type of
a high level Forelgn Ministers’ Conference of Sub-Cabinet
officers?

Secretary Herter. As of now, there is not. I may add
this with regard to the Summit; that the four nations that were
involved in the Summlt were the four nations who, as a result
of the decisions and agreements reached after the war, were the
four nations that have the responsibility for Berlin and for
the final settlement of the whole German question and that is
the reason for those four, essentially getting together.

It 1s possible that again they will have to get together.
Whether normal diplomatic changes would make progreés or Foreign
Miniéters’ meetings 1n advance would make program so that it

would be worthwhile for them to come together, I Jjust canit

tell you., That is always a possibllity. But almost any other
subject, there are many other nations that are invoived beside

those four, and it is a great question in my mind whether or not
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f—l9 that method of coming together for the resolution of problems
would be fruitful in the future,
end T-19 Senator Humphrey. In other words, what you are indicating
%gd:fi?s is that a Summit Conference ought to meérely be the ratification,
essentlally the ratification of decisions that have been
tentatively arrivedlat at the normal diplomatic levels.

Secretary Herter. In my opinion, that 1s the most
desirable thing.

Senator Humphrey. I agree. How do you explain, or is
there any explanation for what appears to be a contradlctory
bit of evidence ofGromyko's blustering up at the United Nations
on the Soviet Resolution and yet, the Soviets apparently

C:D conclliatory behavior in recent days with respect to the quick
release of our plane and flyers who strayed into East Germany
and the recent broadening of Soviet-American exchange projects?

Secretary Herter. There again, you have got one of those
contradictions. As I was saying eariier, the fact that the
attlitude of the people in Moscow and even the officials with
whom our Embassy officials have to deal, have been entirely
normal since this incident,

It is very hard to reconcile with the very harsh words

<f> that both Khrushchev and Gromyko have uttered.
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cantor—take Senator Humphrey. Do you lay any credence to the doctrine,
1o or at ieast an observation that hags been made, that while
the Soviet tactics may change for awhlle, that insofar
(:D as thelr general over-all strategy is concerned, that it wiit
remaln pretty much the same as it has?

Secretary Herter. Certainly as far as their objectives
are concerned, I think 1t was quite ciear from some of this
docgmentation that wlil be put into the record, that is
the apecches that were made by Mr. Khrushchev, that he had
lald greater and greater emphasis on the eventual triimph
of Communism over the world, and that he put particuiar
emphasls on that in recent months before the Summit,

C:D (At this point,'Senator Case, of Neuw Jersey, entered
the hearing room.)

Senator Humphrey. T have a letter from a gentleman
who is a professor emeritus of a unlversity up &t Bennington
Coilege, who has had an uncanny record in wy yezrs of
acquaintanceshlp with him in understanding what goes on in
the Soviet Union., His name is Dr. Bernard Tauer. He is a
former social Democrat of some 35 years ago from Austria,

a professor of political economy, now retired., He minitors
<:> Soviet broadcasts, studies Soviet iiterature, particulariy

photographs and what-have-you. Just to give you a 1littie

backgrpund, he predicted to me some thrge weeks, I guess 1t

was before it happened, the rewoval of Beria. I have a letter
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here from him right before me, and it is a letter telling

how Mr. Khrushchev was going ©o scuttle the Summit Conference,
wrictten on April 25th; this letter is. And I also have a

letter from him here which indicates that this -- he says,

"The Soviet leader will now do everything possible to prove

that Eisenhower is a war-mongerer and an lmperalist aggressor
and not a man of peace, In action not merely in words., We

must, therefore, prepare ourselves for all kinds of provocations
ail around the worid."

His thesls is that Karushchev had been selling the Soviet
people upon the idea that President Eisenhower was a man of
peace and man with whom he could deai. I don't mean deal
in the sense of the crudeness of that word, but one with
whom he could conduct reasonably good negotlations, and that
when the President accepted the responsibility for the flights

: and didn't accept the opportunity, at least what some people
say was an opportunity of removing himself fromthat responsibiiity
that Mr. Khrushchev took this as a vefy personal matter,
since he had staked his reputation in the Kremiiln and in
the consuls of the Communist Party upon the fact that he
could work with Elsenhower, and that Eisenhower had in a sense
not merely upset the diplomatic applecart by referring to -=-
this is Mr. Khrushchev, the expianation that is given to me
here that Mr., Khrushchev felt that Eisenhower had not only

upset the diplomatic applecart. But, more importantly, from a
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3 subjectlve point of view of Karushchev put Khrushchev

in a very difficuit position with Ccmmunlst Chinese,

with the Right Wing Stalinisto In the Soviet Union, so that
<:> Khrushchev ig now making a personal crusade out of abitacklng

the President.

What is your wview of thls? I am going to give you thils
letter. I have a vhole serles of these, and this 18 a very
remarkablie man, may I say.

At this polnt, Senator Alken entered the hearing

| room, )
Senator Humphrey. For example, I have a letter from him

tuo weeks before the recent shake-up in the Soviet Unilon

C:) which was not too fundamental, but Indicatling some of the
changes that were going to be made; by a very careful analyst
of broadcasts and meetings and literature. I had this man
down to see the late Senator Walter (George some of you may
recall, and he was very heipful at one {ime. What 1is your
view of Mr. Khrushchev's reactlions lateliy to the Preslident,
the personal venom that he seems to exhlbit?

Secretary Herter, I am particularly interested In two

things, Senator, In the letter that you have Just read; cone,
(:D the fact that it was written before the U-2 incident.
Senator Humphrey., Yes.
Secretary Herter., In which this authority cites the

fact that Mr. Khrushchev was golng to scuttie the conference.
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Senator Humphrey. I think that substantiates essentlally

what you were saying this morning, your own obgervations
on this.

Secrevary Herter. Yes. The second has to do with the fact

th&t the President didn't accept the way out which Me. Khrushchev

appeared wo offer hin. My oun feeling wilth regard to that
sécond matter is that 1t was very wmuch of a tr@p. That what
Mr. Khrushchev thought might happen is that the President
would disclaim personal reaponsibllity and that then
Mr. Knrushchev would say. "The sgltuation ls even more dangerous
than I thought, pecause this means that that same 1ilttle frantlc
group in the Pentagon" -~ and that is the phrage that he used
in his press conference~~-"is running the Goverhment of the
United Statds without the President knowing about it, and
that makes our situation even worse" and he would have
invelghed in exactly the same terms and asked the President
for exactly the same apologies and punighments which he
agked for later.

I think that the element of personal pique certainly

played a part in the whole show.
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The Chairman., The Senatorisg time ls up.

The Senator ifrom Kangas.

Senator Cariseon., Senator Alken «-

The Chairman. I am sorfyj the Senator from Vermont.

Senator Alken. I won!t take long.

Speaking of the reaction of the rest of the world, have
you made any analyslis of the reaétion vf the other countries
of the worid relative to the collapse of the Summit meetling?

Secretary Herter., Yes, I think we have. It lsn't, of
course, complete. This will mean a scudy from a great many
mitions and bring this altogether in one Rlacg.

I think that, perhaps, the best Indlcation has been
the attitude among the representatives at the United Nations
where you have got a cross-section from the rest of the world.
From the very outseﬁ of the Russian ebmplaint there 1t was
very obvious they weren't golng to be able to get any votes
from thelr calling this.an aggression, except Soviet bloc
votes.

Some of the smaller countries, two of them, abstalned
in the final vote for reasons that were of a rather different
nature.

But,by and large, we have heard no sympathy from the
point of view of what you might call the uncommitted natlons
or the free nations of the worid for the attitude that

Mr, Khrushchev took.
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Senator Aiken. Are you satisfied we have not iost
the prestige throughout the world, as a result of or lost
more than Russla has,.

Secretary Herter, May I say. sir, that in my opinion
our alllances are Tirmer than they have ever been.

Senajyor Aiken. What was the significance of the ghake-up
in the Russian government prior to the U~2 incildent, I believe,
ilast Aprii,'was it not, when Mr. Kozlov was promoted, and
coupled with that question, why donit we hear anything
about Mr, Mikoyan any more? Has‘he—been isolated or just
got oul of theinews, or what has happened with him?

Secretary Herter. Mr. Bohlen, who ig our expert:
1s also the tensor of the document$530 I am afra’d he has
gone out of the room at the moment.

With regard to the disappearance of Mr. Miloyan,
we have been told this is just a normal vacation he has
taken down to the Black Sea. It is true In years gone by
he had taken rather extended vacatlons there, und whether
this is true or not we can't say.

With respect to the shake-up, I think the only significance
that it had were that two of the stPOngest members of
the Central Committee were sent to other responsibilities
and this may have been a personal strengthening of [. . .. . &
M, Khrushchev’a pouwer within thé Commltvee iteself. But

it was not considered very highly significant.
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Senator Alken. That is Mr, Xozlov's bprowation, is

not signiiicant?
Secretary Herter, I don't think gso. I didn't knouw thatl

he as such had been promoted.

Secretary Herter., Well, a long time ago, I think vhen
Mr, Averiil Hérriman was visiting in Russia.

Senator Alken. Yes.

Secretary Herter. He reported that Mr. Kozlov
had been pointed out to him by Mr. Khrushchev as his
successor, saying that he and Mikoyan were too oid to carry
on and that Kozlov was the number {wo man. But there wes no
telling whether he wasvsaying'@hat seriously or whether he
was being flattering about 1t because Mr., Kozlov was
thre at the time, |

Senator Aiken. I thought he made the best iﬁpression
of any of our Russian visitors last summer. At least when

he came before this Committee, I thought he did.

Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3



Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3
' 156

¥ have no further questions.

The Chairman. The Senator from Oregon.

Senator Morse. Mr. Secretary, I think it would be hlepful

O for thig record if you made a atatement in regard to the

functions of NASA, and the part that NASA played in connection
with the U-2 fllight.

I donit think the record is very clear what the
functions ;f NASA, and what Jjurisdiction, if any. the State
Department has over NASA and what the'relationship between
NASA and the Security Council iég and the State Department.

Secretary Herter., NASA, as you know, is an agency devoted
entirely to the peaceful development of sateliites and outer

Q:D 8pace vehiclez of one kind or another.

Its operations nave now been separate out Irom what
were called purely wmilitary operatiocns, althoughit is
alwaya inevitable 1n the development of boosters that there
should be an intevrelatvionship between the two, because
the military vehicle and the peaceful vehicle have got
the same problems of propulsion to get up into the air.

Tne witnesses of NASA, of course, will ke befores +he

Committcee,

most of the U-2's

are used by NASA in connecéion with pureiy scientific work,
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meteorological work. Actually, the Japanese (Government
found them tremendously valuable in tracing the course of
tornadoes last year, and I think that NASA put out at least
three publicatlons on their findings from the U=2 weather

observations.

With respect to the actual development of events
in relation to NASA, T am sorry tovsay that I can't glve you
flrst-hand information. |

Perhaps Mr. Dillon can supplement that as it occurred
whille I was overseas and when Mr, Diilon was in charge.

Mr, Dillon., A1l I can say is ag far as I know the
State Department didn't have any direct relationships with
NASA on this matter, énd the relationships that there were,
were handied by the Central Inteiligence Agency

S0 either Mr. Dulles or the NASA witnesses

themselves will be able to inform you on that.
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. Senamx Mogxse. Why would NASA make a statement in regard

to this plane if it was under the juvisdiction of CIA.

. .ME. Dillon, On The cover story it was in the open,
it was under the jurisdiction of NASA, the plane was.
Actually for thig opexation it was undex the jurisdiction of
CIA ".

Senacor Morze. Thexefore, NASA, in your oplnion,
was acting within the proprieties when it isgsued the statemenl
that it issued.

My, Dillon., I thiak so, ves.

Senatox Morse. VYou thiank it had cleared that statement
with CIA or had authority from CIA to issue it.

Secretary Hexrter. I think soc.

Mr. Dillon. They should have, as I undexstood the -
matter, these guidelines to answer questions were prepared by
CiA. They were gone over with State Depariment people a day
o¥ two before., We had cthought that MASA was going to
handle this in the way of answering questions. which we knew
they would get, because this was a NASA plane, and
they apparently chose instead to forestall the questions

just by putting it all out in the formof a statement.

Senator Morse., I vaige the questlon because I wanc ©oO
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do what I could in ovder ¢to clarify the record in regavrd

to the allegation made that there is not the best of
coordinétion between éhe State Department, CIA, Pentagon
@ Builr}ivng and now NASA, and that there may be a need for a
cencralization in the State Department of the authority

o authorize any statement by any of these ageancies in regard
tO a situation such as this, because of some possible
¥reason to believe that if this had been centralizedmoie

we would not have been having different gtatements coming
Exom diffexent agencies.

Mr. Dillon. We were nolt aware, actually of the
fact that NASA was going to_make as formal a stacement as
Q:) this, and it was somewhat of a éuxptisea

The Chalrman. I could not hear that answer.

Mz, Diil@n, I say we were not aware of the fact that
NASA was going to make such a formal statement as thisg,
and I am not sure that the Central Intelligence Agency
was either.

All the xelationships -- as I said in my orviginal
statement, there was ccordination, there was a de¢ision that
the statements were geoing to be made by the State
Departmentc.

That decision was taken and made known to the other
agencies concerneéa which were the Department of Defense,
and the Central Intelligence Agency then on the mozning
of May 5th.

The Centzal Intelligence Agency had the yelationships
Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3



Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3 160

with NASA and undertook to pass that on which we had no
relationships so far as NASA was concexned.  They didntt
know we were in this thing, and somehow‘:‘chisﬁta‘tement~
was puc out by NASA somewhat moxe complete than we expected
but ié was along the lines of the material that they had
been furnished,

Senator Movse. Turning to a queéticn that Senator
Humphrey asked and may I asgsure you that I am quite non~
political in zaising that, I am only seeking to findout
vho had knowledge of what in regard to the matter, I xefex
o the May 27 issue of the WashingtonPosi, in this article
by hMr. Rekexts in the course of which he said "Nowhere
in the three and a half hour television program did
Nixon refer to any presidential direction inthe U-2
crlsis other than his approval ofthe £lighis some years
earliex. Amcr was there any reference to his own part in
the affair. Nixon, of course, sits in the National
Security Councll, Nilixon did say that he was privy ¢o
the U-~2 reconnaissance policy, and I do endorse it, and
‘he also said 'I knew about-this flight.®"

Now, my interpretation, Mr. Secretary, of your testimony
is that neithey you nor the President knew of this specific
£light going ©o be taken at the time that it was taken, but
that you did know that there was a general program for such

£lights and that this f£flight could be considered as a part
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of that program.

Now I ask you do you have any reason to.believe that
Nixon knew anything thatyu and the Pregident did not
know and that maybe just an unfortunate use of language when
he says "I knew gbout this f£light", and that he probably
means that he knew about the general program of reconnais—
sance.

Secretary Hertexr. I would assume it was about the general
program rather thandout thé particular €£light.

Senator Movse. But as far as you know the National
Security Council did not brief its mowbers in xegard o
any particular f£lights wiéhout also notifying the President
in regard to gpecific flights.

Secretary Herter. HNo, I think the National Security
Council was only aware of the general program.

Senator Morse. Are you a menber of the National
Security Council®

Secietary Hertexr. Yes, E'am,

Senator Moxse. One f£inal question at this round, Mr.
Secxeﬁary: As you know I, along with everyone else, I
think, who has the igtexest of peace at heart, am very much
coricerned gbout long continuation of this nuclear armament
race.

Do you think that the United States and the Western

Powers on the one hand, and Russla, on the othexr, can
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continue this nuclear arxmament xace with its constant
inciease and acceleration for another ten yesxrs, and not create
the great probability of war.

Secretcatry #Hexter. I don’t know about the great
probability of war, Semator, but I would say ceriainly
increase the chances of war.

Senateor Morse. I know we are of one mind but I want the
record to show it, thils particular one mind: Do you agree
with me that our generation simply has the responsibility
in hisﬁoxy to fin& some honorable way to end this nucleax
armament race?

Secretary Herter. I agree with you completely on that.

Senator Morse. Do you think that we ought to do every~
thing that we can to txy to get the United Na:iions to
exercise greater jurisdictlional authority in connection
with this whole mattexr of armament raée than we have
been able to get it to do so far?

Secretaxy Hextex. ‘Senator, some time ago, I made a
speech in connection with disarmament in which I stated my
views as to the'gxeat necessity in the follcwiﬁg years ¢ find-
ing some answer to this, and at the game time finding an answer
within the framework of the United Natlons of an authority
which could maintain the peace with law and I still feel that
just as strongly as I did at the time I made that speech.

Senator Mexse. Mr. Chalrman, my time is up and I want
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t0 make a reduest for data if I may.

The.Chairman. Cextainly. ..

. Senagor Morse. This morning we talked about the cases
that we had offered to take to the World Court.

Senator Wiley. A little louder, Senator.

Senator Morse. This morning you talked akout the cases
that we were wllling to take te the World Coure. I wondex
if the State Department can complle f£for the committee the
recoxd in regarxd to the Woxld Court's operation, both
on the cases it has handied and the cases that we have
offered to have it handle that have been rejected by Rugsia
ox any cther power.

Secretary Hertexr. VYes, we will be very glad to do that.

The Chalxman. The Senator f£from Kansas.
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‘5;18 Senator Carlson., Mr. Secretary, recently one of our
Cantor . . o
s-1 Nation’s financial writers, writing on the conditions of Russia,

wrote that Mr. Khrushchev was proposing a devaluation of the
(:D currency as of January 1st, and he stated that no natlon tampers
with its currency unless they are in financlal difficulty.
What do we know about. the financial and economic condition
of Russla that would lead us to belleve or do we know that he
is planning on devaluvating the currency?
Secretary Herter, This, I hadn't heard at all, I hadn?'t
Seen that particular statement and I h e seen no.where in
any report any indicatlons that they were planning to devalue
their currency.
(:D There is no guestlon but what their foreign exchange rate,
their officlal rate, don't correspond with reality. They have
got two rates,; one an official rate and one a tourist rate. They
are very far apart. One is four rubles to the dollar and one
is ten rubles to the doliar. But from the point of view of their
internal financial situation, I have heard no reports they were
planning to devalue the ruble,

Senator Carlscon. We have had evidence that there is social
unrest among the people, thinking that they are entitled to better
living conditions, better homes and housing.

Do we have any evidence of tﬁat?

Secretary Herter.' Yes, I think there is., But this is

a matter that Mr. Bohlen testified to a few moments ago.
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Senator Carlson, That there is?

Secretary Herter. There is evidence of that. As Mr.
Bohler said, it is 1mpossib1e to get documentary evidence as
such, because of the secrecy and the discipline in theilr
society, but I think that every visitor to Russia who has
had a chance to talk with the workmen or the students at the
university and so on, have come back with that feeling.

After all, Mr. Khrushchev has made a good many statements
about the necesslity of increasing the standard of living of
their people.

In their incentlves that they offer from the point of
view of thelr workers, better living conditions in these
housing projects is one of the principal incentives that they
have been offering in the past, giving people priority if thelr
particular sections of a plant do particularly well from the
point of view of production, they will be advanced to better
living quarters,

I think that the urge for better 1iving quarters and a
better standard of living, more consumer goods, 1s a very real
one.

Senator Carlson. Does the State Department have any evi~-
dence of a labor shortage in Russia based on a statement that
was recently made that Mr. Khrushchev reduced his military
s8trength because it was necessary to get some of the people

back into the labor market?
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Secretary Herter. Yes. Very recently there has been
a study that I think will be made avallable to you, made on
the whole guestion of the labor problem 1in Russia,

It is an extremely interesting one from the point of view
of the present situation and the relationship of women at work
compared with men and the very large excess number of women
over men that exists 1n Russia today.

There is certainly every reason to believe that Mr.
Khrushchev?s announced reduction of the Armed Forces was an
effort to increase the male labor force by taking the extra
men out of the Armed Services when he said he was planning to
reduce from some three miliion, six hundred thousand down %o
two million, four hundred thousand; that the principal purpose
of that was %o get a larger working force.

Senator Carlson. Is it not reasonable to assume then,
that Mr. Khrushchev does have some problems, internal problems,
and that that may have some effect on his actions and his
decislon at Paris?

Secretary Herter. That undoubtedliy is true. He has had
some other internal difficulty that you undoubtedly kﬁow about,
Senator, in connection with the new land that was planted. an
area @hat has not been too successful and this was something on
which he had backed very heavily to increase the food supply of
Russia and I think he had been rather heavily criticized

because it hadn?'t worked out as planned.
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Senator Carlson. That is all, Mr. Chairman.

The Chalrman, Senator Gore?

'Senator Gore. Returning, r, Secretary, to the examina-
Tion of whether there was a breakdown in coordination and
administrative procedure, I weuld like to inquire when you
personally first learned of the President’s order that the U~2
flights would be discontinued?

Secretary Herter., At the time that he gave i%.

Senator Gore. When did he give it?

Secretary Herter. My recollection is that it was
immediately after a meeting at the White House on Thursday
morning at about noon.

Senator Gore. Did he give the order to you?

Secretary Herter. ©No, he did not give the order to me. T
think it was through General Goodpaster, but I am not quite
certain,

Senator Gore. How did you know that it was given?

Secretary Herter. I heard him, | |

Senator Gore. You heard him give the order?

Secretary Herter. Ves.

Senator Gore. And this was on Thursday?

Secretary Herter. This was on Thursday.

Senator (re. Then you do not know whether this in-
formation was communicated to the Vice President?

Secretary Herter., I have no idea.
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Senator Gpreo He was not present?

Secretary Herter. He was not present.

Senator Gore., Was this at a meeting of the Security
Council?

Secretary Hertef. No, I don't think it was the Security
Council. I think it Was at the meeting immediately after the
Security Council at wnich there were three of us present,
Allen Dulles was not present and I have forgotten -~ I ®think
Gates was present after a Cablnet meeting it was.

Senator Gore. I didn't understand.

Secretary Herter. After the Cabinet meeting.

Senator Gore. After the Cabinet meeting?

Secrefary Herter. Right,

Senator CGore. That settles that. You heard the order
issﬁed, and I will have nq further question as to where it was
issued and to whom. If you heard it issued to Secretary
‘Gates, that settles one question specifically.

But you do not know whether the Vice President was in-

. formed aboubt iv? |

Secretary Herterav Excuse me --

Senator Gore. D14 you wish to add something?

Secretary Herter. No, no.

Senator Gore. You do not know then whether the Vice
President was informed about;it?

Secretary Herter. No, I do not.
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Senator Gore. On this gquestion of coordination or lack
thereof, in addition to NASA and the State Department, to
which Senator Morse referred, there is the State Department,
NASA, Mr. Hagerty and officials within the Department and
perhaps others.

Did Mr. Hagerty operate in this fleld strictly as Press
Secretary or did he undertake some Executive function?

Secretvary Herter. I know of no Executive function that
he assumed.,

Senator Gore. I would like to ask Mr, Dillon when -- well,
I will ask you,

Was Mr, Hagerty present when the President issued the
order that the flights would stop?

Secretary Herter. No.

Senator Gore. Do you know if he knew about it?

Secretary Herter. I can’t tell you.

Senator Gore. Are you aware of the fact that the New:
York Times carrled a story the next day that such an order
had been issued?

Sécretary Herter. No; Id4idn't even know that. I left
town that night. I went to Paris that night.

Senator‘Gore. Do you know, Mr. Dillon, if Mr, Hagerty
knew about the order?

Mr. Dillon. I am not aware whether he knew about 1t or

not, no, sir.
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Senabtor Gore. Are you aware of the fact that he, in
press parlance, knocked down the New York Times'! news story
that such an order had been issued?

Mr. Dililon. I was not aware of that; no.

Senator Gore. You were not aware of that?

Mr. Dillon. I assume it is correct since you say so, but
I w as not aware of it.

Senator Gore. And neither of you know whethér or not
Mr, Hagery, like Mr. White, was speaking without knowledge?

Secretary Herter. Senator, may I ask you is the New York
Times story a quotation from Hagerty?

Senator Gore., I don?t have the exact gquotation, Does the
staff have it?

I ask unanlmous consent, Mr. Chairman, that the staff
may find the reference to Mr. Hagerty and Mr. Reston'!s story
and insert 1t at this polnt in the record.

The Chairman. Without objection, it 1s so ordered.

(The quotation from the New York Times is as follows:)

COMMITTEE INSERT
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semator Gore. Mr, Dillon, on May 5th Mr. Hagerty told a

presa conference that the State Department and NASA would issue
statements, Were you aware of this?

Mr, Dillon. I have very recently learned that hé indicated
that NASA would issue a statement as such.

It was decilded that the State Department would issue a
statement. I hadn’t been aware that he had sald we were.

But it had been decided and he knew 1% had been decided that we
were going to do it.

Senator Gore. You say you very recentlyllearned this,

How recently?A |

Mr. Dillon. I think a day ago or bwo days ago that
someone from the press saild that he had told the press when
they were there that NASA wouid issue 2 &bé%ementy so0 that
they could get thelr information from NASA,.

Senator Gore. Did Mr. Hagerty suggest to you that the
State Department lssue a statement?

Mr. Dillon. No, it was decided when we first heard of
this, this news, as I sald eariler thl:z morningg at this
National Security Council meeting or right after it that was
held outside of Washington, that the State Department would
handle the publicity on this, and that we would make any
statement that would be made, and it was known at that time that
we would make a statement.

Now, Mr. Hagerty was not at the Security Councll meeting,
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but he was at that area out there where this exercise was
taking place and so he was aware of the fact that the State
Department would be making a statement at noon that day at our
regular press conferénce %ime.

Actually, the statement was delayed forty-five minutes.
It was made at 12:45 when our regular daily press conference
took place.

Senator Gore. Was it decided there that NASA would make
a statement also?

Mr. Dillon. It was not to my knowledge, no. It was not
decided there that NASA would make a statement.

Senator Gore. Who made that decision?

Mr, Dillon, I think that you have to ask NASA. I don't
know who made any such decision.

The_fact 1s, as I have said earlier, I thought that NASA
would answer questions.

I didnit know they were going to make a statement until
I saw 1t®.

Senator Gore. You don't know whether NASA or whether
Mr. Hagerty made that decision?

Mr. Dillon. I have no idea, no. I would assume NASA
made 1t because we did know that NASA would have to answer
questions because this was a NASA plane that was lost and the
reporters were golng to find out how high the plane filew, what

kind of a plane it was, anything they knew about it and we had
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glven them -~ the Intelligence Agency had gilven them good
answers on hcwW to answer such queétionsa

Senator Gore. You 83y you assume this. You did not
know 1t?

Mr, Dillon. I knew they had given them that material,

I knew that as a fact, but we did not know that they were
going to use that and put 1t into the form of a statement as
1t actually came onut,

Senator Gore. But Mr. Hagerty did know that a statement
by NASA would be made?

Mr, Dillon. I dont!t know that what he said meant that
he knew they were going ©o make a formal statement or whether
he was Just using that as a phrase, indicating that they would
answer guestions.

He wmay have thought they were going to make a statement.
I just don't know that. He may have called them up and asked
them. I don't know,

Senator Gore. Did, in fact, both the State Iepartment and
NASA make statements subject to Mr. Hagerty’s notice to the
press that they would do so?

Mr, Dlllon. The State Department made 1ts statement and

NASA made one about three guarters of an hour later, yes.
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EXPUNGED

Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3



Fir 20

Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3
175

Senator Goxe. My time 1ls up, Mr. Chalrman.

Tne Chairman. Senatexr Wiliiamsf¥

Senator Williams. No dquestions.

The chaixﬁang The Senator f£rcwm Chio.

Senatcr Lausche. When did the Camp David meeting take place
with Khrushchew?

Secretary Herter., I am terribly sorry —-

Senator Lausche., Wnen did the Camp David mesting take
piace with Khrushchev?

Secretary Hexter., That was in September as I recall
it.

Senator méusehee Did Khnrxushchev since May lst, make
any statements indicating that the Sgviet had knowledge
off American recomnaisgance planes cver their terxitory?

Secretaxry Hextexr. None.

Semator Lausche. Based upon his statements and wpon
the knewledge which he c¢laims the Soviet possess what day
was 1t that he understood the £irxst Amexrican plane flew ovexr
theSoviet?

Secretary Herter., I can't identify that. My recollection
48 that when he was in Paris he made the statement tha& he
knew sbout these overflights at the time thathe was at Camp

David and that he thouvght there was something £fishy about
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President Eisenhower at that time..

... Benatox Lausche. Well. then at Camp David he did state
that at that time he knew that oux planes were flying over
the soviet.. . . e

 Seczetary Herter. That is what he said later when he
got to Paris.

Senator Lausche. When he got ©o Parig?

Secretary Herter. When he gok ©o Pavis. . He nevex
mentioned it at Camp David or at any time between Camp
David and Paris.

Senator Lausche. Well, if he kwew at Camp David
that our reconnalssance planes were £lying over the
Soviet, and he said nothing sbout i &, can you give
any reason for him remaining silent on the subject?

Secretary Herter. He was asked thaﬁ_question in a preés
conference in Pavig?

{At this point, Senator Hickenlooper left the
heariang room.)

I haveé“t got here the exact words of response but I
think we could dig them cut for you, and tell you just what he
said in answer to that himself, but as I recollect, he said

~he felt that this was an inapprpriate moment to bring
it up but that he did think there was something f£ishy
about the President at that time.
Senator Lausche. Then at Camp David, when he knew that

our planes were E£lying over his land, he was discussing what
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was to be the summit conference, is that corzect?

Secxetcary Herter. What he hoped would be the summit
conference.

Senator Lausche., And if we take him at his word at
that time he hoped to have a summit conference although he knew
then that we were supposedly commitbing a flagrant transgiression
against his xights.

Secretary Herter. That ls correct, frxom his own latex
testineny.

Senator Lausche. Can you reconcile those two positions
as both being true, one that he honestly intended

to attend a summit conference and, two, that he knew ocuxr planes

were £lyling over his land.

Secretary Herter. No, it would be very difficult
to reconcile the two. It is very difficult paxticularly
to ¥econcile the tremendous issue that he made oi
it later when he knew abcut it all the time, -according
to his own statement,

Senator Aiken. Will the Senator yield? You will £ind
it on page 16 of Khrushchev®s statement that Twining, then
Chief of staff sent a plane over Russia the day after he
left, went into Kiev oy whatever it is, it is the third
paragraph on page 1i8.

Senator Lausche. Yes.

Your recolleciion is that the meeting took place last
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September. |

Secretary Hexter. Yes, sir.

. Senatoz Lausche., Now then, from September to May 14,
was that the day he came to == N

Secretary Herter. May 15 he came to Parls.

Senator Lausche. He came to Paris, he said nothing about
this knowledge that he had, supposed to have had while he
was at Camp David.

Secretary Herter. That is nmy recollection. I would
want to check on that., It is possible that he may have
said gomething at the Presidium meeting before he left
Moscow. My expert here tells me he did not, and
that wasny vecollection that he had never mentioned it
until he got to Paris.

Senator Lausche., Can one ratlemalize the furcr of
his resentment in May of 1960 compared to his admitted silence at
Camp David about similcy £flights?

Secretary Herxrter. Mo, one cannot.

Senator Lausche., MNow then, last January 18, Dulles
appeared, Allen Dulles appeazed before ocur commiﬁtee@.and
at that time he ﬁerely on the surface scratched what I
thought was a very vital question: The comparative ease
with which the Soviet gets information in the United States
and the impregnable wall that bars us from getting us in

the Soviet.
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I ask you the dquestion, Mr. Hertex, to give your
uné.er#tandingf of the facility with which we get the infor-
matcion out of the Soviet, and that whichthey get out of the
United States,

Secretary Hertex" Serator, as you know, we have whal
we call an open society. We axé very proud of it in which
we haove complete frée&om cf the pre«s, in which except for
matiers of highest security, very freely talked about, and
a great deal is yuh;iﬁheé.

- Our technical magazines publish a great deal fxom the
point of view of vital military information. Oux
ingtallations iﬁ this country, while no direct overflights
are permitied, can be photographed with comparative ease from an
angle of one side.

Genexally speaking we have had no resgtrictions at
all on txavel in the United States oxcept for a few
very small circumscribed areas, like the Atomic Energy
Agency plants, and we have had restrictions on Soviet
citizens traveling in this countiy which have been taken
entixrely as a ;etaliatery measure because of the
limitations put on the travel of Amexicéns'in Russia.-

Senator Lausche. Right.

Secretary Herter. The Soviet Soclety, as you know,
is a ¢losed scciety, where one moves and goes only where they

tell you you can ¢go or when they tell you you can go.
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. Senatox Lausche. This morning in answex te a question,
assuming that a Soviet plane was, over the United States,.
what we would do gbout it, you said that there is no need.
of them sending planes for reconnaissance Purprses because
they can get that infoymation without going through
that effoxt.

{Senator Williams left the heavring room.)
Seczetary Herter. That is quite so.
Senator Lausche., That is they can ¢o to Cape Canaveral
and precty simply see what is golng on there.
Secretazry R zteé. Well, sir, there are newspaper
men down at Cape Canaveral all the time and a good
many visitors.
Senator Lausche. Now the fact ig that “"The Soviets
gtill consider that secrecy and the security of -
everything relating to their military operations is one
of thelr great assets, and they have no intention whatever
of changing that.” Those are the woxds of Dulles,
"Horeover they have no intention of letting us into areas
of miliéazy importance.”
That is, there is a difference between the Soviet getiing
information here and our getting it in the Soviet.
Secretary Herter. Oh, a véry great difference. It is
the whole difference between an open and a closed society.

Senator Lausche. You had héen asking for this Congress
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t0 pass a blll that would give the State Department some
limited contrzol over Communists going to the Soviet Govern-
ment. Iz that corxxect?

Secretary Herter. That is cozrect.

Senator Lausche. And why have you asked that? -

Secxetary Herter. Because we felé that we ought to
have some control <~ these are American eltlzens traveling
abyoad -~ that we ought to have some control over those
whe may be going o varieﬁs parts of the world
in interest imimical to tﬁose of the United States.

Senator Lausche. And you aéked that because you have
in nind the grave dangers that lie in the ability of a
Communist to distribulbe informatien in the Soviet when
he makes the vigit, Lf he so desires.

| Secrcetary Herter. Yes, sizr.
'Senatcx Lausche. That bill has not been acted upon,
ié.thaé correct?

Secretary Herter. That ia corzect,

Senator Lausche., Is there any -ype of legislation
that you feel that we.ought to pass with respect to the
curcailment of theduties of the powers of the Central
Intelligence Agency ©r the enpanslon of them. If you have
given that sﬁbjeat ne thought you can state it.

(At this point, Senatox Aiken left the heaing

TCOM,o )
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 Secretary Herter. I have given it no thought. I hope .

thexe would ke no change so far as the pctivities are concerned.

Senator Lausche. That is all I have,.

.. The Chairman. Mr. Secretary, there was one statement .
that I wag told vhen I was in Pavis that an account of ovexr-
£lights of the”Rusgian“texxitoxy,had been carried in the
French newspapexr gome 30 to 60 days prior wo that.

- Have you ever heard of such account?
Secretary Herter. I think I heavd the same rveports in Paris
(:} but I never saw any documentary proof of it.
The Chairman. Have any of your people tried to confirm
ie?
' Secretary Herter. VYes, but I have not heard it
mentioned by anyone eucept when I was over in Paris too,
I had not heard a word beifore that.

The Chaliman.

f:j In his speech of May 5, Mr. Khrushchev referred to the
U.S. ovexflight of July 2, 1956, aApril 9, 1960, and May 1,
1960. He said that the April 9 flight caused concern

within the Soviet Government and resulted in admonishments
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to the Soviet military not to let it happen again.
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cantor-take
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The Chairman. This, again, ralses this point that
puzzles me very much. The evidence is quite clear that
Mr. Khrushchev, if he didn't know positively, he certalinly
suspected that it was our planes that were going across his
territory, diﬁnfﬁ he?

Secretary éertemo That 1s what I assume.

The Chalrman. And it comes back to this point that
he hadntt railsed such a terrible fuss about 1t until this one,
that 1s“the May ist flight which he shot down. And, galn, it
occurs to me that -~ you said you couldn’t veconcile hils
difference in his attitude toward the prior flights to
the attitude toward the May 1s£ flight. But isn't the
reconci:liation, if it is explainable at all --Ilam just asking
you if there is one - does it not lie in the fact that our
Government did take the position regarding the May lat flight
and thils program, that this 1Is a deliberate program which we,
the President, takes responsibility forg,andAwhich we
intend to continue?

Secretary Herter. Not which we intend to contlnue. That
has never been said.

The Chairman. He interpreted 1t as such. Mr. Khrushchev
in his statement, which I have a copy of here ~- this 1s his
language. He says -~ thls ls a quote irom part of our documents
vhich says: YAt his press conference, Herter made an

outrageous statement. Far from feel guilty and ashamed of
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aggreasive actions, he justifies them and says that he will
continue 1ln the future. Only countries which are in a state
of war can act in this way. Herter's statement has made us
doubt the correctness of our earliér conclusions that the
President and the Amerlcan Govermment did not know about the
fiightsa Herter's statement says that this inteiligence plan
was endorsed by—the Government .

At least that is the way he interpreted it, and, as we
Sald bgore «-

Senator Laugche, Who iz he? Who interpreted it?

The Chairman. This 1g a guote from Mr. Karushchev's
gtatement. He 1s interpreting what Mr. Herter said as
speaking for the Government. But is this not at least a
possible reconciliation of the difference in attitude between
the prior flights and the May lst flight?

Secretary Herter. It might be if ome wanted to interpret
the words that I spoke that way. There was no need of his
interpretling those words that way. Certainly from what I sald,
that is a very far-fetched interpretation. I think he was
Interpreting 1t for his own purposes that way. I think that
the one reconcilablie feature between those two things is
that in one case he had specific evidence and in the other
@se he did note.

The Chalrman. Then it is your position that neilther

your statement or the President?s press conference can
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legitimately be Interpreted as an endorsement and Justification
of the flights and a policy of pursuing them in the future?

Secretary Herter. Certainly not the policles of pursuing.
them in the future. The President's statement that was made
in Paris said it was perfectly ciéér'from what I had said
and from what he had gsaid that there was nothing that'allowed
that inference.

The Chairman. Did you in your background news conference
in Parison Sunday, May the i5th -- I repeat the same statement
that you had made prior thereto in Washington.

Secretary Herter. I was asked at that background press
conference whether or not I had made a statement that we
would continue doing thils. I repeated the very words that I had
wed In my statement. I sald I stood on those. That did not
imply that we would continue.

The Chalrman. Prior to that second statement, Mr. Khrushchev
had so interpreted it. Were you aware that he had so
interpreted it in his statement to the Presidum?

Secretary Herter. I think I may have beerni, but if one
took cognizance of every interpretation of his of everything
that happens in this country one would be spending all one's
time trying to correct his statements.

The Chairman. You believe that i1t is an unreasonable
and far-fetched interpretation of your statement or the

President’'s in his press éonference that these would be
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continued, is that correct?

Secretary Herter. Yes, I do.

The Chalrman. Is it or is 1% not a fact that the press
in this country interpmted 1t in that same fashion?

Secretvary Herter,I am told that some did and some dild
not.

The Chairman. It might have been wise for us vo clarify

| & that time so that we bath 1nterpfetéd it properly, don't

you'think? | “

Secretary Herter. That, as I think I have indicated
eariier, referred to the cessation ofthe flights and not
resuming the flights., The President had raserved to state in
Paris in conjunction with the fact that he was Qoing to offer
& the United Nations his plan for aerial supervision of ail
mtions that would be willing to submit to 1t.

The Chairman. Do you believe that any head of State
of any important nation at least could proceed with
negotiatlions at a conference under the situation at ieast as
he Interpreted it, that is that we intended to éontinue
such flights?

Secretvary Herter. After all, Mp, Khrushchev arvived
in Paris and made an arrlval statement there the Saturday
before the conference saylng that he expected to proceed and
have fruitful results.

The Chairman. For the record, in order that it is clear
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what ig nvolved here, I would like to read one sentence,
the one which I think you clarified that is referred to
by Mr. Khrushchev, and I quote from the statewment that was
made by the Department of State om May the Tth.

"The neceasity for such activities as measures for legitimate
national defense is enhanced by the excesslve secrecles
practiced by the Soviet Union in contrast to the free worid."

I think that is the: statement that led to the interpre~
tation, do you not?

Secretary,ﬁerterc I am sorry, sir, I have got'before mne
now the stubement of May 7. Which were those words?

The Chalrman. It occurs on page i2 of the background
documents prepared by the staff, the first paragraph at
the top of page i2.

Secretary Herter. That does not in any way intimate
that they would go on.

The Chalrman. You do not belleve that that could
reasonably be intérpreted a3 meaning that they will continue?

Secuetary Herter. No. |

The Chairman. My time 1s up.

Senator Wiliey?

(At this point, Senator Gore withdrew from the hearing
room. ) |

Senator Wiley. Mr, Secretary, I have llstened to

this examination, and as you brought out; Mr. Chairman, I think
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that what we had better do-is get down to what I think is
the basic lssue, not what was said or particulariy done,
but let's see what Kbhrushchev did.

On“ApPil 28th, ¢n what has been calied the speech
at Baku, an examination of that speech shows ciearly that
the Soviet Government had cometo the conciusion that it would
get nowhere at the Summnit Conference. Nouw, llsten to thisg:
"Overnight all the government-controlled radlo stations" --
and get the date, May 25th -- "ail the controiied radio
gtations and newspapers in the Soviet Union began to prepare
the people for a summit fallure, and flatly blamed the west.
The same bitter tones which Khrushchev used in Paris is
to be noted in what he said at Baku."

And Baku was days before.

"In a violent attack in Baku on Secretary Herter
and under Secretary Dlilon, on that same day, the Soviet
Premler intimated that he planned to use military power to
enforce the proupactive seizure in the West.,"

I am quoting him.

"If the Western Powers refuse to Sign a peace treaty
with the German Democratic Repwblic; they will not retaln
the rights and preservation on uhich they are insisting.
They naturally wiii forfelt the right of access to West
Berlin by land, water ad air;“

In another portion of his speech, theSoviet Premier
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practically admitted that he had no hope of reaching any
agreemant at the Summit Confervence.

He said: "The nearer the day, May 16th, the heads
of Government are to meet, the more one-sided ig the approach
of certaln statesmen of the Western powers of problems before
the conference."

Then he goes ahead and gives examples abbacking
Herter and Dillon.

(At this point, Senator Carlson withdrew from the
hearing room.) o

Senator Wiley. Now, I want to quote this. This
morning I called your attention to this young Russian that
stepped out from the Inteliigence department of the Russlan
Government, thét‘waa heavd.He sald, and I quote, "The Soviet.
Communist regime 1s in no way interested in allowing
so popuiar a man as the American President to come to the
Soviet Union. They are definitely afrald of the impact such
a visit can make on the pebpie.“

Now, if the issue is what caused Khrushchev to shoot
hls wad, so to speak, I think it is very clear that when
he found out, one, that he couldn't make and impress upon |
his assoclates that were to be at'the conference, two, that
Mao Tse=tung and the Chinese were ready and Mao Tse-=tung
laced him up and down before this conference, a8 the record

shows, when he found out that they didn't want it; and, three,
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that he was having trouble with his own gang in Russia; and,
fouﬁ, that the Youth of Russia were simply getting all fed
up, he decided before he went %o Paris that he was'going |
to let the balloon go up.

(At this polnt, Senator Gore entered the hearing room. )

Senator Wiley. It waéntt the question of U-2. Thab may.
have glven them the ostensible opportunity to blow hig top,
but, as a mattér of fact, he was already to go days
before. Now, 1f that 1s the fact, and I think it is susiined
by the people who welgh the evidence, then there is no need
of our inguiring into what some folks feel. They may be a
livtlie remliss hither and yon in ocur own pubiic service. They
were laboring under deep pressure., When you put yourself
in the President's boots and go over there and see what he
tooks you have goé to say, "God bless him. He held his temper
and he handied himgelf so that he made all America and all
the world proud,’ and the result was as suggested, that the
record now shows. Look at the UN, loock at Britain, what they
say about it. &And the answer is that I think we should just
dout stop our investigation and not try to ball up further

the igssue,
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#21 Firsh ~ The Chaizman. For the ¥ecoxd I will say that the President
on yesterday morning, he heartily endorsed this inquiry.
Senatoz Wiley. That what?
O . The Chairman. The President himself sald in my
presence that he heartily endorsed this inguliry, and if the
Senator wishes tcbﬁake igsue with the President, why I suggest
he talk to him about it.
Senater Wiley. Oh.nc. I heard him say that. I am
not disputing his saying it. I am just simply saying that
where do we go frxom here now?
Are we going further. are we going o try to ball
up the giency that gets the information, that haé
c:b done such a tiemendous job chav three and a half yvears

has given us the informaticon.

The Chairman. I think the Senator misunderstands the
purpose ¢f this meeting. It 1s not to ballup anything.
It is to tyry to clavify a situatlon foxr the benefit of
the committee and the Senate and the country. And I
know of no one whe has the slightest purposein balling
<:> up anything .-
Has the Senator completed his qmesﬁians?
Senator Wiley. Ves, but I am sorry that I pxockably used
that expression. What I meant was confuse, and if there

i8 going to be fuxthex evidence would you mind telllng
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me whe the next withess i1s?

The Chalirman. Thexe will be no other withnesses

o
g
)

afternoon,

Senatozr Wiley. Well, do you expect to call some later
on?

The Chaiiman. ¥Yes, Mr. Dulles is coming on Tuesday.

Senatoy Mansfield -~ is the Senator thyough?

)

Sanator Wiley.  Nog that is the point I awm making. I
want ¢o state iﬁ}a&l gincerity, gentlemen, it is your respon~
sibility i€ yvou want ©o zall this man who has created this
agency under the mandate of the Comngress, that we have
appropriated money fox, and have act tied his hands
and he is the one who brought about this, let us be frank.

{Discussicn off the zecord.)

The Chailrman. The Senator is misinformed if he thinks
that is going to go in the public zecord. There was no inten-
tlon at any time of putting this in the public recozd,

Senator Wiley. bUid you hear yesterday when the
distinguished Semator fxem Chio wery plainly and bluntly
said that the leaks, and I kelong to a committee where I
have seen them go right from the committee zoom xight out in
front of the fellows who have got the mechanisms for retalalng
the == fov giving the news == now to ﬁe this is the first
time Y have blown my top but I am simply tellingiou in

the interests of my country, I thirk yvou should anot call in this
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other agency. I think that these gentlemen have told what
the public know now, it is all public, but to bring
in this other ageney, I think would be a mistake.

The Chaixzman. ﬁoes the Senater say, that he knows Senators
who have gone out of executive sessions befoxe the microphone
and repeated what has been salid here?

Senator Willey. I am not putting my finger on any
BSenators. If you want teo know what is going on what have they
got the television out there for and you are quoted every day
as appearing befoxe it.

Let®s be frank and this is not the only committee
where they spill over the beans. But I am talking shkoul
the Central Intelligence Agency, gentlemen, I happen
e know something about it, and I know what it means,
ane pecople over in the House know what it means, and I
sincexrely hope that you will not bring Dulles before you,
that is all I have %o say.

The Chairman. Senacor Mansfield.

Senator Mansfield. Mr., Secretary, in an attempt to
claxify ome of the confusion which exists in some of
cur mindg I would like to ask some questicns:

What is your present official interpretation ¢f interna-
tional law as regards the extensiocn of naticnal seovereignty
skywazd.

Secretary Hexter. What?
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Senatexr Mansfield. What is ouxr present official

interpretation of international law as regards the extension
of national sovereignty skyward?

Secxetary Hevtex. I don’t think we have any.

Senatoz Mansfiecld. We have no internatiomal law in
that field as yet. |

Secretary Hertex. That I know of. There is no definition
as to what is considered the atmosphere above the air?‘
Thexe is no aceepted interpretation or verbiage when
they aze talking sbout the atmosphexe.

Senator Mansfield. Would you thiak it advisable teo
have an international conference or conferences o0 decide
the guestion ©of Sovereignty in the aiy over a country b
and also the possibility ©f regulating the seas in
a more ordexly f<ashion.

Secretary Hexter. Well, as you know, we have tried
for over a year to get the United Nations to get
the outer space commitiee organized and undey way.

Senalr Mansgfield. At our suggestion.

Secretary Herter. Al ocur urging. We have been urging
that this be done. We have been pressing it. We have noc
been able to make any headway because it was'zefuged
continually by the Russians who xefused to go along,
£irst of all on the principles of the thing. Thexe have

been further discussions of the thing but we have been unable
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o agree oa who should carxy it out. I think we are making
progress but it is still one of those things where
theze is a constant dispute as to what should be done.

.. Mot only that but we hope to get it adjusted in time =
80 that this year there can be a great international scientific
CQagxess‘becausé youre dealing with now mattexs
that the scientists are expert in that the layman ig
not,; and they were unable to even allow the calling of
that Congress..

Senator Mansflield. No, in other words, as yet there
is no clavification of this partlcular matier.

Getting back to my statement coancexning regulation of the
seas, we, of couxrse, operate under the doctrine of
freedom ©f the seas. But what I have in mind is the
fact that it is my undezstanding that the‘soviet Union
can launch missiles anyvwhere it wants to up within,
say, three miles of our coastline if it is in ocur vicinity,
and we have the same zight under inteznatlonal law to
fire missiles up to three miles, say, of Valdivostok, is
that correct?

Secretary Herter. Yes, and « - itvdepends again on what
one takes as the territorial waters. Three miles have been
the generally accepted texritorial limit. The Soviet
Government has claimed 12 miles and, as you know, the recent

Geneva Conference failed in reaching agreement among the
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nations as to what should constitute the texrvitorial watex
of diffezent nakions.
. Some nations have gone much faxther than that,
parcicularly with zegaxd to fishing xights. . . . .. ...
Senacoer Mansfield. That's zight, but what I have in
mind is that times have changed considerably, even in oux

generation. = .
Mz. Chairman, may we have ordex in the commitiee?
The Chairman. It ig difficult to have oxder.,
Senator Mansfield., In view of the fact we have these
satellites going skyward hundreds of miles and we
have these missiles going thousands of miles into the ocean,
92,000 miles wasthe limit, it was because of these new factors
that I offered the suggestion that it might be well to have

B/

international conferences to take heed of changed
conditions in this modezn day.
We have also advocated as you are aware of, pecacegful

uges of outer gpace and we have made no headway.
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The. Chairman. $enaﬁ0z_sore?

Senator Gorxe. Mr. Chaivman, the first question I wish to
pursue leads to a guestion of Mr. Bohlen, since others have
asked him questions and I wonder if I might ask if he return.

Mr. Secretary. Secretary Dillon testified this morning
that he did not know of this particular £light, and to the best
of my memory you saild vou were away at a time and 8id not
know ¢f this pavticular £light.

Secretary Herxter. I knew of theprogram, I made that
clear in which the flight was included but not that
parcicular £light,.

Senator Gore. I was specifying this particulax
£light. Did I covrzectly understand both of you?

Mr. Dillon., Yes, Senator. I had heard that there
was a series of flights about -- that would be undertaken about
six weeks earlier is when I heaxd of it, and I had not
hearxd anythingsince that time but it wasnot in my regulay
otdexr of business.

Semator CGore. Would you zepéat what you said, I didn®tc
quite catch it,

Mr. Dillon. I said I was informed about six weeks
before the date of ﬁhis flight, I say, that there was a program
of particular flights bf wvhich this one could have been a
paxt, and I did e

Senator Gore. It could have been but you did not know of

Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3



Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3
202

this pazticular one.
Mx, Dillon. Neo, I 4id not know any more than that of this

partcicular flight.

P

Sematpxhﬁarenmiheuﬁzesiﬁenﬁ; in his statement to the :
Améxican people, the otheyr night, said this:

"As to e timing, the question was really whether to
halt the program and thus forego the gathering of important
information that was essential, and that was likely to
be unavailable at a later daﬁee The decision was that the
program should not be halied.®

NMow, as I undezstgad your reply to the Chairman

of the Committee, you did not participate in the making of

a decis ion to halt or not to halt this particular

Secxetazry Herter. I had approved of it.

Senator Goxe. On this particular program.

Seézetazy Herter. And approved of it as z part of the
Program. The gquestion of the halting of it was not in |
iésue at that time although I know that the Summit
Conference was coming.

Senator Goxe. Well, wmy specific questicn is this:

Did you participate in a conference or were you aware of
a decision, did you make a decision? What is the full
extent of your knowledge cof a decision that the flight would

not be discentinued.
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.. Secletary Herter. I know of no conference at which
that matieyr was discussed.
Senator Core. Then would it have properly been ==
... . .Seczetpry Herter. The only_wattex that came before
me was the ipproval of this program,
Senator Gore. How long ago 4id you appzove the program?
Secretary Rextex. I can’t tell you exactly but it
was some ctlne priexr to the time I wenk abroad,
Senator Gore. Is it a matter of weeks?
Secretary Herter. A matter of weaks.,
Senatolr Goze.
Would amuch a decision have beenproperly within the
province of the State Depaytment?
Secretary Hetter. No., The State Deparximent would not
have a final decision in the ratter. The State Department

would have am advisory position im the matter, and the CIA A4a
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that have been made here today eithex before noon or since
imply the opinion of any of our colleagues that we are doing
othex than pexforming our duty as we see it.

I undexstood the purpose of this hearing was to develop
the facts insofar as we were capable of doing 80, and to the .
extent that security would permit, o make available the facts
w0 the American people.

Do I correctly understand the puxpose of the hearing?

The Chailrman. The Senator from Tennessee understands it
as I understand it in spite of the cpinion of the Senator
£ron Wiscqnsina.

Senatoy Lausche. HMay I ask, i8 it ==

Senator Wiley.
You night as well Just uow.

Jenator Lausche. Is it confined to what our government
has done or are we concerned about what the Soviet has
done? |

 The Chaixmang I certainly am concemned about what the
Soviet has done.

Senator Lausche. It hasn®t been~manifested here. today;
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The Chairman. The Senator from Tennessee has the
floox.

‘Senater Wiley. May I just say one thing?

The Chailxman. Does the Senator yield to the Senator
from Wisconsin?

Senater Wiley. As long now the storm is over, I
realize when I hit the ceiling before, that I was probably
not as ccherent as I should be. I want o say to you with the

conviction ¢f a man who has lived long, that the business of
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a committee like ours is to develop facts fox legislation.
Develop facis tia t are necessary to bring out curative legis-
lation, or 1f you please, if you want to investigage an
individual, that is apother thing.  We had the McCarthy
hearings. We know what that ﬁid.;__?gutﬂh@;f:..e. 4s another angle.

At is not the bhusiness. of this committee ko expose
to the people of this countzy, a wechanism that ig_so
important tomreserve the life and imtegrity of this
countxry, and I mean the CIA; I km.ow\...whai; it "ﬂeans,
I happen to know scomething akout what it has done,

and to me, at

least, and ac I say, as a young man of past 70 summers, please
remembexr that when you go inte this thing, as you are
going into it@.y&u are going to expsgé a mechanism t¢that is
as vital to the life of this country as anything you can think
of.

It is that mechanism that made possible this series

cf three and a half years of exploratory missions over the

Soviet Union,

If that is what you are golng into, just count your

words.
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f-ga Senator Gore. Mr. Chairman¢?
Cantor.
s-1 The Galrman, The Senator from Tennesses.

Senator Gore. Dealing with the CIA is not a new experience
<:> for me. I happen to have handled in the House of Representatives
the appropriation Bill for the Atomic Energy Commission, for
five years before I was elected to the United States Senate.
I was party to the appropriation for the Atomic Energy
Program when the Atomic Energy bomb was being bullt in my State.
No one ever heard those secrets from my lips and every year for
the past fourteen, every year I have listened to the testimony
of the CIA from cne to two or three or more times, I don't
think tgat it is necéssary that we vlolate the security of
<:> this country in order to hear Mr, Allen Dullesﬂ testimony.
The Chairman, Will the Senator yield? Mr. Dulles said
to this Committee when he was asked if he would appear, that
he would be very pleased to appear. He thought it would serve
a useful purposé. He had no objection.
Senator Gore, I will not continue this diaglog. I didn‘'t
want any lmplication to rest that because I was pursuing some
of the.very important questions that reflect upon the effect-
iveness of our country and the prestige of our country, that
o there was something unpatriotic or partisan in the purpose,
I thought this was the purpose of the hearing, to develop
the facts, and so far as they could be revealed t; the publilc,

to do so,
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t22 The Chairman, The Senator is quite right.

s2
Senator Gore.

To return to the question, insofar as either of you know
or any official of the Department, no actual decision %o proceed
with the flight or not to proceed with the flight was made.

If such a decision was made, it was beyond your knowledge,
Is that a covrrect statement?

Secretary Herter, VYes, I think that I ought to say this,
When the matter come before me, I had an opportunity of dis-

approving it and did not do so. Not it, but the program.
Senator Gore. But this particular flight did not come

before you?

Secretary Herter. AsS one of a group.
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Senator Gore. When did you first learn of 1ts misfortune?
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Secretary Hevrter. I recelved word in Ankara, Turkey that
a2 plane was down. That is all.

Senator Gore. From whom d1d you receive 1t?

Secretary Herter. It was handed to me from a slip of
paper that Mr. Livingston Merchant had. He was sitting behind
me at a NATO meeting and he handed me a siip of paper, "word
has come that

& plane is missing.

I donf®t think he said in Russia. I didn’t know which one
of the flights 1t was.

Senator Gore., Is it your presumption that this was
communication within the Department?

Secretary Herter. Oh, yes, I assume it was either in the

| Department or from CIA sources with whom we are constantly in

touch overseas.

Senator Gore. I believe my time is up. I will return to

this.
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The Chalrman, You had one question of Mr. Bohlen. He
was called back at your reguest, |
Senator Gore. VYes. If I may digress a moment, I have
been told several times, Mr. Bohlen, that in your press
briefing at Paris, I believe on this 16th, that you expressed
the view that except for the U-2 plane, there would have been
a Summit Conference. |
Will you relate to us what you said at this briefing in
this regard?
Mr. Bohlen. I don't recall, Senator, honestly that I
made th?t statement --
- Senator Wley. A little louder, please,

Mr. Bohlen. I don't recall that I made that statement.

The press briefing that I held on the 16th was an open press
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conference on the redord, and I d o not recall any statement

of that kind because my view then as now is that the U-2 was
one of the factors that may have led to the particular Soviet
behavior at Paris.

I really do not recall any such statement of that kind.
Its all on the record. This was an open press conference,

Senator Gore. You did not hold an off the record back-
ground briefing?

Mr, Bohlen. I held a background later in which I outlined
at that conference the three factors that I believed and still
do entered into the formulation of the Soviet position,

Senator Gore. Was a transcript made of that background
briefing?

Mr, Bohlen. I would have to check on that, sir. I think
there probably was,

Senator Gore. Would you subply it to the Committee if
there was?

Mr. Bohlen. If there is one, I would have no views on it.

Secretary Herﬁer. I would have no objection,

Mr. Bohlen. If there is a transcript of it, but I recall
the circumstances very well in this, in that three factors that
I mentioned earller, the Soviet pessimism as regards the outcome
of the Summit from their point of view; the possible opposition
or questioning of 1ts conduet and the U-2 matters were the

three factors that'appeared to me to have entered into Soviet
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decision to torpedo the conference,
I might add, Senator, for clarification on this, We have

used the words "scuttle the conference" guite often 1

There are varlous ways of scuttling a conference. You
can scuttle a conference before 1t begins or you can sabobage

it from within,

Senator Gore. Off the record.

(Discussion off the record.)

The Chairman. Does the Senator from Ohlo have any
further questions?

Senator Lausche. Mr. Herter, I have in my hand the
National Security Act of 19“7,.and I have read from page 5 that
part of the material which deals with the duties of the Central
Intelligence Agency.

Are the duties enumerated in this section complete?

Secretary Herter. Yes, I think those are enumerated
in that section,

Senator Lausche. This section didnit place any directions
on how intelligence is to be obtained.

Secretary Herter. No.
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firs-take 23 Senator Lausche. Based upon fihe guestions that have

been asked here today, one get implied that the President
should not have told the truth. The next set implled that
c:) one of the men iied. And the third set impiled that there
was an Inability to coordinate the vieus.
Now, my qestion 18 -- off the record.
 The Chalrman. Take 1t off the record.
We will make a special dispensation. Whatever the
Senator wishes, does he wish it on or off?
Senator Lauachac Let it on. Has anyone given any
thought about thé_pecuiiar posltion that the President
of the United States is placed in in connection wilith the
<:> paradoxical situation that he ig supposed to be a manlof truth,
and moral character,and yet requestved to lle about these
matters, if they are with;n hig knouwledge?
Secretary Herter., I am not sure whether that 1s a
rhetorical Questien or whether you are asking wme that question.
Senator.Lamscﬁea Well, take it hoth ways.
{Laughter.)
Senator Gore. Rhetorical or orateorical.
(Laughteéo)
<:> Senator Lausche., Well, let's assume that you were the
Pregident, Mr. Herver, and you wére faced with the diilemma
of teliling a lie about what happened or teiling the truth.

In either event you are hooked. What course would you foliow?

Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3



Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3
218
Secretary Herter. I can answer that one so far as

T myelf am concerned,

The Chairman. He foilowed both.

Senator Lausche, I dont't know. I am beginning to wonder
what the Central Inteiiigencé Ageney is doing ought
not to be a matter lef't with them aﬁé'without the knowledge
of the President.

- I hawno other questions.

The Chaivinan. Mz. Secretary, I Jjust want to make a
comment. The Senator from Chilo has put his finger cn the very
point that prrhaps I didn't make clear %o him earliev in
ny iaguiry. This 1a in wmy opinion a central important
question about this whole matter. Iz the wisdom of the policy
of Involving the President In this kind of business, that
is espponage, which traditionaliy involve iying and cheating
and murdering and violating the sovereignty of countries
wich uwhich you are not at war and ail of this, and what
the Sematur has said ~- is perhaps, I didn't wmake 1t
cilear, but this 1s exactly the point that I was seeking to

- paise and to elucidate in the first iine of questions that
I asked., And I agree with him thls presents a very difficult
diiemmé, and the question isthe wisdom of depérting irom the
traditlonal historical practice of not involving the head
of the state in any espilonage responsibilities, that he is

above and apart from. We follow that In the Congress, as
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you have just stated.

We treat'iﬁ differently, and I was

suggesting and ralsing the questlon of whether it is wlse
to depart from the traditional practlce that all important
states throughout history, without exzception in accordance
with the Secretaryis testimony have foilowed,‘and this 15 the
very point. I donfé think the Sernator understood what my
point was. )

Senator Lausche., I knew iif I were Presldent --

Senator Wiiey. You would tell the truth,

Senator Lausche, I would tell the truth.

Senator Wiley. So did he,

The Chalrman. He did and this is the answer,

Senator Lauscﬁeo And could you not expect him to do
anything else?

Senator Willey. That 1s right.

Senator Lausche. Arnd the onrly way you could enable
him to perform his duty to his country was not by having
him know what was done and if he didn!t know the quesﬁions
would be pursued why didn't he knou,

Senator Wiley. He tadght the worid a lesson in 1960,
new diplomacy, by teliihgrthe truth, aad I think that 1t will

echo down through the years.
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Senator Lausche. So I dﬁéiﬁéknow which group to
follow. “

The Chairman, It is eghoing down the years already.
This is the principal echo that has arisen from this whole
matter. |

Senator Lausche. The tragedy is that this 1s made the
principal echo but all of the misdeeds of the Soviet
are looked upon as Inconsedquentilal.

The Chairman. Well, the Senator is entirely incorract
in that statement. He draws concluslons that are not justified
by the record or any statement that I have heard. before the
Commlittee.

Senator Lausche. Well, I can --

Senator Mansfield. Can I ask a question?
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The Chairman. Do I inderstand Mr. Allents statement
on the television program was not approved by you or by
the Acting Seuretary?

Secretary Herter. No. As I understand it; this was in
answer to a question on a TV program.

- Senator Mansfleld. Yes. I think we have the program
here. But could somebody on the staff find it right away
so that I could read 1t just as it is?

The Chairman. Well, Mr. Secretary, whlle they are looking
for it, is 1t or 1s it not the policy of the Department of
State that its employees clear public statements with regard
to dellcate in@érnational relations before they make them?

Secretary Hérter. Yes, siv,
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The Chairman. It is the policy?

Secretary Herter. It is. Any statement dealing with
foreign affairs should ke cleared with the State Department.

The Chalrman. Then when they are made in this fashion
without clearance, it is not In accord uwith your poiicy, is
that correct?

Secratary Herter., Well., as I say, this had not been
cieared with us,

The Chalrman. He 1sg an employece --

Secretary Herter, I think it 1s very possible that
a prepared stavement had been cleared, but not an ansuer to
a question, There 1is no way of cluaring that, until one knows
what question 1s asked.

The Chairman, What I asked this for is because later
on it seems to me one of the important things that might
come out of this Committee hearing is a tightening of the policy
which gives the Department of State and the Secretary of
State a much closer control over public statements by other

agencles, and it strikes me that we would get in much less
trouble 1f all these peopie would clear with you or ﬁith
whoever is secretary of state or the department, we wiil

say. Don't you think that would winimize the chances of
inconsiséent statements being made by members of the Govermment?

Secretary Herter. Yes, that is so. But I think that

anything that he may have said in a prepared statement on that
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7 TV program at that tlme had been cleared. Insofar as

answers to questions are concerned, there isno way of clearing
them without knowing the answer and in that way he was on his
own.

The Chalrman. It 1s his responsibllity, then, when he
goes beyond anything that had been cleared?

Secretary Herter., Yes.

Senator Manstield, Mr, Chalrman, on page 35 of the back-
ground document on the Summlt Conference; about 7 or 8
lines up from the bottom of the page., Mr. Allen, in response
to a question from Migs Dodd states the following: "There
are a lot of different definitlons of ‘tspying! and I don't
want to %ry to quibbie, but I do think-l ought to ppint "
this out and that more people ought to recall it: When he uent
down he told exactly what his mission was and exactly what
he was expected o do, and he was under Instruction to do
that."

Now, the Secretary's answer to the question, I just
thought it ought to be in the record, becase there was some
Jonfusion about this statement in view of information which
had 'been glven to a group previousiy in the Capltol. Again,

I want to say, Mr. Chalrman, that I am through with my
questions of Mr, Herter, but I want to express my thanks
to Secretary Herter, to Secretary Dillon and to Ambassador

Bohlen for theilrcandor and frankness today and to assure them
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that X, for one, appreciate what they had to say, and I think
they have made a real contribution ¢o clearing up a
confused sitaatian which conironted the Committee as a whole.

Secretary Herter, We are very grateful for that,
Senator.

Sernator Wlliey, Of course, on thig glide of the ailsile,

I have praisedyour statement in the beginning and I will
pralse your conduct In the conclusion. You ali did very
well,

Senator Gore. Mr. Chalrman?

The Chalrman. Senator Gore.

Senator Gore. I do not wish to unduly tire the Secretary,
but I am perfectly willing to come back after dinner or
to come back tomorrow. I do have many more questions.

The Chalrman. Well, it is my understanding the Secretary,
he looks very well to me, if he prefers to go on tonight --
He does not wish to run over to next week,

Secretary Herteéﬁ I prefer to go Qng Mr., Chairman.

Senator Gore. I don't think 1t wili take very long
tonight.

The Chairman. The Senator may proceed.

Senator Gore. Fine.

(At this poin?,}Senator.Lausche withdrew from the
hearing room. ) L

Senator Gore. I .wish to resume my inquiry with respect
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9 to this particular flight. I am perturbed that you say
it would no%t be within the province of the Department of
State to make the decilsion to discontinue these fiights; |
‘ that this would be the declsion., a declsgion for Mr. Dulles
to make.

Secretary Herter., No, I nevercald that at all.

Senator Gore. I beg your pardon?

Secretary Herter. I never sald that at all, I said he
was the operational man who had to plan things, and then submit
them for approval.

Senator Gore. Well, who would make -- who would be the
proper agency to consider whether théae fiights should or

‘ should not be digcontinued?

Secretary Herter, If'the question of discontinuance had
come up, if that was a decision to be wade, we would have
been asked advice on it. We were not asked for advice on
it. We gave approval to carry on with the routine planning
that had been done from the point of view of flight,

Senator Gore. Some weeks plor?

Secretary Herter. Yes, and had given that approval.

Senator Gore. pld that approval -

. Secretary Herter., That approval., az I say; 1s advice.

Senator Gore. Was advice?

Secretaryvﬂerterg Ia advice. The President himself took

the responsibliity for any finzl declsion.
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Senator Gore. Was your approval -- did your approval
involve continuation of the fllght thrcﬁgh and during
the period of the Summit Conference?

Secretary Herter., Not speeificalily as such. The approval
constituted going ahead when conditions were appropriate

Tor carrying vhem out.
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Senator Gore. Did you give no consideration to dis-~
continuance at a time prior to the Summit meeting or during
the Summit conference?

Secretary Herter. Senator, I answered that guestion

before when I sald that there is no good time for a failure,

that if the Summit conference had debarred carrying out these

flights the Presidentis visit to Russla may have been the
next thing that might have debarred them,

It may have been debarred when Khrushchev was at Camp
David; it wmay have been debarred when Mr. Khrushchev was

visiting in France.

There may have been any number of diplomatic reasons why

they shouldn’t be conducted at a given period of time.

In my opinion, the value of the information and the

necessity of carrylng out these flights under given conditions

warranted thelr going ahead.

Senator Gore. I am trying to be specific in my questions,
and I am trying vo elicit from you whether at the time you gave

your approval for the general program some weeks prior to this

particular fiight, you gave specific consideration to the

gquestion of continuance or discontinuance during or near the

time of the Summlit conference.

Secretary Herter. Certainly. The Summit conference was

very much on my mind as it was on everybodyis mind, at that time.

Senator Gore. And you gave your approval then?
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w2 Secretary Herter, I did.

Senator Gore. To their cont;ngation throughout the Summlt
conference? |

Secretary Herter., That was never specified as such.

Senator CGore. In other words, you are saying then that
there was no decision to discontinue?

Secretary Herter. That is right.

Senator Gore., Then if any decision to discontinue or If
any decision was made not %o contlnue, to use the words, you
are not aware of 1t?

Secretary Herter. No. The only declslon that I kmow of

at any stage of the game was to go ahead.
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Senator Gore., That is fine. Another statement which
the President made, I would like to read:

"Of course, we had no indication or thought that basic
Soviet policy had furned about. But when there 1s even the
slightest chance of gtrengthening peace, there could be no
higher obligation than to pursue it."

Now, on page 4 of your statement here teday, I would 1ike
to read. This 1s on page 4, beginning "On the Summit érospects."

Mr. Chairman, I ask unanimous consent that the second,
third, fourth and fifth paragraphs on page 4 be printved, re-
printed at this polnt in the record.

The Chairman. Without objection it is so ordered.

{The paragraphs referred to are as follows:)
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] ﬂIn the first weeks after the Khrushchev American visit
there was a general improvement of atmosphere and people began
talking, partly in hope, pertly lv some confusion, about
“detente", Thepe were comparatively comcillatory speeches on
each gide; there was progress in the test-ban talks at Geneva; a-
new Soviet-US gultural agreement was signed November 21, and on
December 1 the U3, the USSR and other powers signed the Antaretilc
treaty. : ' o

But cIouds ‘begen, to gather even then. One of the earliest
signs was the -strong Soviel protest on Novemper 11 against West
German plans to build a.broadcasting sbtation in West Berlin.’
Another was the Khrushcheév speech.on Nevember 14 which was harder
in tone,.boasted again of Soviat missile prowess, &nd began &
concentrated attack on Adénauer and the Gérman Federal Republic
whiech later incressed and seemdd to be & central feature of
Soviet pre-Summit tactics. The reason for this attack 1s stili.
g matter for speculation, Perhaps they thought 1% would under-
mine the Western position op Berlin by helping to divide the
Western Alllea. It had no such effect of course, put naturally
rallied ug to speak out. in defense of our German ally. )

Knrushchev .as early .aé December 1 also began repeatling hls
threats to.sigr,a.separate peace treaty with East Germany. He
repeated theae threats in his speech’ to the Suprenme Soviet on
Jaruayy 14 and.in his rvemaika during his visit to Indonesla and
other countrigs in Jahuary. ~In Pebriary 4, the Warsaw Pact
pewers issued the first formal blec-wide commitment to sign a -
seperate GDR peace trestvy. Thus Khrushchev'!s threating Baku
speech of April 25, though 1f was the.most sweeping since Fsbru-
ary 1959, wag only.a hapsher version of whiat he had been saying
for mopths.bafore. I shdll make full documentation on his °
spaeches avaiizble to the Committee. ’

Not until April did we reply et length to this mounting
crescendo of FHoviet statements, We 4ig so in order to keep the
record gtreight -- nobzbly in thé speeches of April I and 20, :
which Xhrushchev sttecked {or starting arguments that he in fact
BMAA RETUD. . Be o e e el e e ' L

g e e s € iy v g , .
i ) N . ., « ‘-
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s6 Senator Gore., You will see from this statement, Mr,
Secretary, that you contradict the President's statement, do
you not?

) The President says:

"We had no occasion or thought that basic Soviet policy
had turned about."

You say from what I have just read, you list one, two,
three, four occasions that the Soviet policy had, in fact,
changed.

Do you wish %o comment ?

Secretary Herter. Yes, I would be very glad to comment.

I don't think that there is any essential disagreement

O in the two points of view.

I am talking primarily Iin my statement in regard to
Berlin and Germany.

The President was talking about a series of things in
which he spoke of disarmament, mﬁtual inspection, atomic
controi, and then he added Germany and Berlin.

As I testified earlier in the day, I think we all had
hopes that there might be a possibility of making some progress,
even though not in the German-Berlin sltuation, but in the

Q:D disarmament field, and as a correlary possibly in the nuclear
testing field where it was not a Summit problem, but 1t would
have been a three power problem that could have been discussed

in Paris,
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For instance, so long as there was any hope of making
any progress, the President was willing to go.

Senator Gore. I didn't question the President being
willing to go so long as there was any hope of progress.,

What I was asking you to comment on was what appears to
me to be a contrast between the President's statement that there
is no indication that basic Soviet policy had turned about,
and you give almost a full page, indicating that they had
turned about. But you have finished your comment on that.

Secretary Herter. Yes, there was some talk here about
basic policy and tactics in connection with the Summit. I
don't think the President felt it necessarily that basic policy
had changed.

I think as he said after Camp David, he hoped that there was
a mutuality of interest, particularliy in the disarmament fleld,
which would allow the great powers getting together in order
to make progress in disarmament.

That had always been the area in which he hoped, because
of the mutuality of interest, that we might make progress,

I donit think that there 1s anything fundamentally opposed
in these two statements.

Senator Gore. Now, I wént to ask a few questions which
relate 5o the first of the three questions which I wish to
examive you opinion; that is whether the diplomatic failure

in Parls represented a failure in policy.

Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3



Declassified and Approved For Release 2013/09/26 : CIA-RDP91-00965R000601290003-3
235

You recall that I submitted certain questions to you here
on March 22nd., At that time I asked you:

"Do you think it would have been more prudent to have
had an understanding about the subjects %o be considered at
a Summit conference before agreeing to have one, or do you
think this 1s the proper way to keep the store?

"Secretary Herter. It 1s a gamble. I don't know.

"Senator Gore. You are gambling with high stakes, and
i% seems to me in a wreckless manner. I am disturbed to have
the Secretary of State make the statements that you have made
today about the Summit conference; that there is no plan, no
purpose, no understanding as to what will be discussed and
what we hope to attain there.

"Secretary Herter. Mr. Senator, I v iew this as essentially
a matter of exploraticn. We have the siltuation where an
individual, Mr. Khrushchev, is the man who makes the decisions
so far as we know, for the Russians."

Later on, I asked you:

"Is there any reason why the Russian dictator could not
delegate the same power to his Foreign Minister as President
Elsenhower should or does delegate to you?

"Secretary Herter., None.

"Senator Gore. Then isn't that a fallacious argument?

"Secretary Herter, Not necessarily, because you are

dealing with an individual personallty who many believe wants

i
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s9 to be the negotiator."

end Now, I read those thlngs because one of the principal,
;
ake 24 if not the principal juétification for going to the Summit and for
c:) T.1@ eXchange of visits was that Mr. Khrushchev and he alone
spoke for the Russian pebple, but today you tell us on page 7:

"I might digress here to observe that it had been our
experience at previous conferences with the Soviets, at least
8ince the death of Stalin, that the Soviet representative, no
matter how highly placed he may be, was bound by the collective
decisions and basic policiy wmatters made prior to his departure
from Mowcow,

"Any substantive changes in those positions apparently

(:D requlred reference back to Moscow before they could be under-
taken," and then on page 8, you say:

"This meeting completely confirm:d our conclusion of the
fiight before that Mr. Khrushchev was operating within the

fixed limits of a policy set before his departure from Mowcow."
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Firsh 25 Secretcary Herter. Thexe appears ® be an inconsistency in
those two statements.
When I was testifying here before, the wvigits of Mr.
(:D Khrushchev in which sometimes he had an important pexson
witch him and sometimes hedid not ~-
Senator Gore. In which, what, six?
Secretary Herter. Sometimes in which he had an important
persenwith him and sometimes he did not, indicated that
his situation at home was such that he had a great deal more lee~
way than had previously been the case.
Wher he went to Paxis, and I think this has been
brought out, he had with him Gromykoc and Mallnovsky,
4:) General Malincvsky. Marshal Malinovsky, who never lefit
him for one moment at any time. This was a departure from
previous occasions. This is why we said they had gone back
to their stahdard'policy of taking divections from
home.
Priox to that time I had believed he had greater
leeway than was clearly indicated here in Paris.
s§na§or Gore. So the assumption proved to be errIoneous.
Secxétary Hexter. 5it is.
<:> Senator Gore. I believe you testifled before the House,
accoxding o prees repores yesterday that summityry as a
diplomatic method had had some ha»d knocks.

Secretary Herter. VYes, I did.
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In answer to a question from Senator Humphrey, I
repeated the same thing‘today.

Senator Gore. And in recommending, which I
cercainly endorse, continuing businesslike negotiation with
the Soviets, you have in mind the more usual processes
and procedures of diplomacy.

Secretary Herter. That is corzect.

Senator CGore. Negotiations.

Secretary Hexter. The one thing that I did point out,
however, is that with regard ¢o the Berlin situation
there that is Great Britain, France, the United States
and Russia. This is the caviy-~over from the war.

Senatoy Gore. Yes,

Secretary Hexter. And that there. there must be
agreement., This is a thing we have been fighting all che
time, that unilateral action by the Russians cannot take
away those rights and obligations which they as well as cux-
selves had acquired as a result of the war.

That it must be done by the consent of the four.

8o that whether or not in thefuture the discussions to
bring the four together should take place through diplomatic
channels, through Ambassaderial level, through foreign minis-

texr or not, I would not say which would be the level;, but

I think that it is much better to see if we can not, as we did

in the foreign ministers® conference, and failed, try to

come together prier to the meeting of a summit
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conference so that there might be one or two small unresolved
issues that could be resolved there racher than trying to
negotiate when you know that you are very f£ar aparc at a summit
contexence.

Secnator Gori:. Well, I hope thatyou will persist, and
that the President will persist in the businesslike under-
takings. I will not ask you to say that summitry apart
from diplomacy failed. I am content with your statement in
that regard. I am sorry that I think it did f£ail.

Secretcary Herter. I would differ with you, sir, on the
questcion of personal diplomacy as against summitzy. I
think that visits, are, on the wholg useful things.

I wouldn®t say that that was something that should be
discarded completely. I think it is particularly true
that visits of ministers of foreign affairs, and
visits of heads of state fromtime to time can accomplish a great
deal of good. But I believe very strongly that insofar as
heads of state are concerned that is not the place to
begin negotiations. It is the place perhaps vhere there
should be the culmination of negotiaticns.

Senator Gore. I will agzee with you in that statement.
The exchange of visits offers opportunities. But for the
frmalization of a head of state conference, vhere severe
international tenaions are involved, without precise planning,
without assurance_thét at least limited =greements can

be reached, is, in ny view. a dangexous process, and a
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policy upon which we should never have embarked,

Of cuxse, it is easiégi%@”say that new than it was
before. .

Hindsight, of course, Qe learned a loagtime ago, is
better than foresight.

The Chairman. Would the Scenatoy yield for a moment?
I have ore or two guestions and then he may come back to

Ce

ot

Sengtor Goxe. Good.

The Chairman. These I think have been covered but for
clarification, X might ask them again. Was there ever a
time when the President aunthorized each £light in this
pregram, that®s never been the practice.

fecretary Herter It has never come up o the President.

The Chaizxman. Noxr of the National Security Council.

Secretarlr Berter. HNo.

The Chairman. It has always been under a blanket
authority understood?

Secretary Herter. That iz my impression.

. The Chairman. Ir this blanket authorization undex
review, elther .onstant xeview or pericdic review?
secretary Herter. In my experience the CIYA has planned

a number of alternate flights at a time.
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The Chairman. When the Depariment brought
Mr. Bohlen back,frcmAMani;ahand”he was well known as an
expert on Soviet behavior, and this was, I thought, in.
anticipatcion of these summit meetings which had been dis-~
cussed a long time, did he ox any other of our Russian
expercs advise you or the President to wait and see what
Mr. Khrushchev knew about the -2 £light before making the
MASA statemeni?

Mr . Dillon. The people in the Deparimer:k who were
familiax with Soviet policy tock part in discussions with
the CIA whid: led to the coordination and the agreement
on the guide lines which wexe given to NRSA: and those
included the people who were Familiar with all aspects
of cur policy. .

Heowevez, as we said before, we did noé know that there
was going to be a full statement by NASA.

The Chairman., Mr. Bohlen was not consulced about
the NASA statement.

Mr., Dillon., HNobody in the State Department was consulted

 about the statement as a statement.

The Chairman. Nobody.

What puzzles me about this is why.was there such
compulsion, if there was, Lo make such an immedlate reaction?

I have wondered why there was any necessity for immediately
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reacting ©o the first Khrushchev statement. o
It would seem to me much more normal to wait a while and
S ee what developed.
<:? o Was there anything that was compelling you to answer
almest immediately? e
Mr. Dillon. VYes; I would say so. It was such an unusual
andremarkable statement when Mr. Khrusghchev
said thalt American plane had been ghot down over the Soviet
Union, that we were not in the position to not make any
comment whatscever.
A5 a result we had to make some comment, and we
made the very bland statemenc whidh was put out onthe
o 5th.
The Chairxman. I didn’t mean that. You misunderstood
ne. I accept the necessity for the cover story, the
statementc.
Mr, Dillon. Yes.
The Chalrman. It is the second one that went into
such detail. It would seem to me that order, it would be
common sense not to follow up oo quickly in the
matter of typing; What was the reasom for that?
<:> Mr. Dillen., The State Department’s second statemenc was
) innocuous too. It didn’t go into any detail, any more
- ' detail than the ozxiginal éover geory did. There was greatc

~= if any detail, that was the statement that was put cut
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by NASA.

..The Chaizman. Ig it not true that the NASA siaptement
itself is what put you in a position of having to make a
further stactement?

Is that true? e

M. Dillon. The further statement, I think, was the .
next statement in this genies, was the one that was puf out
on Saturday which was made only at the time when we knew
that the Soviets probably had rhe pilot, which was new
information, and then the Soviets had already said they had
him, and had said vhere he was shot down, and we knew they
had cextain; the probability was that they had certain
pares of the airplane because the picture which they had
fixst put out turned out to be a fraudulent picture.

The Chalrman.i perhaps don't understand the ¢iming

of it.

Iz seems to me, if I do understand it, that
yog could have sgtood upon the cover story for some time
befcze the necessity 0f any further statement, await
developments.

Mz, Dilloen. You mean, your question is why we made
the statement on Saturday May 7, which was the first time
ve departed from the cover stoxy.

The Chalxman. Yes, sir.

Secretary Herter, That, as I think I have testified
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before, was a decision that:was made in the light of

the very full revelation of Mx. Khrushchev in giving out,
both as to the pilots' testimony, and as to the parts

and equipmepnt that had been recovered. That was when

we had to make the decision were we going ¢o e

keep on lying about this ox were we going to tell the tiuth?

The Chalrman. Why wasn’t there a €hird alternative is
whait I am trying to get at?

Why didn’t you just be quiet and say nothing? You
don*t have just the alternatives of either continuing to
lie or tell the truth?.

You could have said nothing. I was just curious, was
this ever considered that you didn’t have to react?

Secretary Hexter. A good many statements were already
being made in Congress, a good many statements were alveady
being made or zrequixed of us almost.

The press was hounding everubodya “tthat do you say
now after what Mr. Khrushchev had said®, it was a very Jiffi-
cult time iun our society, cur form of scciety to have said
nothing.

The Chaizman; I believe that was the statement in which
you said "It has been established that insofar as the
authorities were concerned in Washington there was no
authorization for such fiights“é is that correct?

Secxetary Hexter., That is zight.
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The Chaiyman. Which was not a truthful statement at
that point, was there?
Secretary Herter.llo, this was still partly cover.
(:) The Chaixmap. Still partly covez?

Secxetary Herter. Still partly cover. It was not
until Monday, after the briefing had taken place before
the Congressional leadexship hexe on the hill that the £full
statement was made,

The Chaixman. It was after that statement that the full
gtatenent was made.

Secretary Hexter. That is correct,

The Chalrman. Was that £full statement if I understood
it; I-think you have testified, was only after complete
and thorough congultation with everyone concerned,
and had the unanimous support of state and the President,
is that correct?

secretary Herter. It is, ves.

The Chaixman. Senator Gore, go ahead.

Senatoxr Gore., Well, whea you made the final statement
that the President did approve, he was responsible, I am
not undertaking to quote you exgctly, you also made it
plain that he did net ap?zove.specific £lights?

Secretary Hextexr. Ves,
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Senavor Gore, I will walt until his testimony.

Now, I wish to make my own feelings explicit. I have
not lntended to suggest, nor do I believe the Chairman or
anyone else hag intended to suggest, that the President or
any other offlclal of the United Stateé Governnent tell a
Talsehood. I don't know of any requirement in Anglosaxon
jurlisprudence or any other jurisprudence stemming from Roman
law that a citizen is required to incriminate himself. I know
of no regulrement that a nation is required to ineriminate
or denigrate or defame 1ltself. I do not claim any sense
of morals or sensltivity to moral standards greater than
the average Awmerican,but I want the record to show that

I was humlliated with offlcial falsification, and I think

- mililons of Americans were humiliated, I can agree with you

that our allidnce stood firm. I am happy that 1%t did, but
I think we would be deluding ourselives if we dld ncb realize
that this unfortuaaie incident has dealt a severe blowto
the moral position of'the United States. I think we should
begin to mend 1t. The way to mend 1% is to ferret out our
errors and our mistakes, correct them, and thereby demonstrate
to the worid ocur wlll and our capacity to survive this kind
of blow, and I hope be stronger thereafter,

The Chalrman. Mr. Secretvary, there was one point
that I overlooked. I had heard that Chalrman Khrushchev

had directly or indirectly made some inqulry about the
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2 possibillty of meeting Mr. Eisenhower before the Summit
meeting. Do you know whether or not that is so?

Secretary Herter. No. I know of no such effort.

c . The Chairman. No.effort?

‘Secretarﬁ'Herter. Actually, Mr. Khrushchev, when he came
to Paris, or just before he came to Paris, sent a note
to the British and to the French, I think, largely on
a procedural matter, no such note to us. When the President
érrived in Paris, there was Jjust as much opportunity for
Mr., Khrushchev to seek a meeting with him as with Macmiilan
or de Gaulle, and no such effort was made from any Russian
8 ource,

‘:} The Chalrman. Mr. Secretary, have you drawn any
inferences from This whole event relatlve to the nillitary
preparedness of the Soviet Unlon?

Secretary Herter. Of course my julment would not be
as géod as that of experts. And here, again, I wouldn't want
to give my judgment as a considered judgment from the‘point
of view of vhe recousd. There is no question but what the
Russlans are uvery active in certain directilons, and that
the intelligence that has been gained with regard to that

‘:: activity has been of very great value to us. Aand I think
that is as far as I should gog

The Chairman. Any further questions?

Senator Wiley. Is the celd war still on or is i1t over?
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Secretary Herter. It remains to be seen. ’
Senator Wiley. Then we had better give primary attention
to the main issuve, instead of,qaé%reling about whe is who
and what igs what in relation tchandiing situations. It was
your judgment, it lsnt!t my Jjudgment. 1T isnt't the buslness
of every little one in the Senate to tell you what you ghould
do. It is your business,; sir.

The Chalrman. Senator Mansfield, do you have any
questlona?

Senator Mansfleld. No.

Senator Gore., Off the record, Mr. Chairman.

(Discussion off the record.)
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The Chairman., Mr. Secretary; one last thing. Do you think
we have learned, not justwe but all of usincliuding you and
the Adminlstration, anything from the U-2 incident?

Secretary Herter. Not to have accidents?

The Chalrman., Is that all we have learned?

Senator Gore: Not what?

Mr. Macomber. Not to have accldents.

The Chalrman. Do you think that is the only lesson
we can draw from these eventa?

Secretary Herter, Mpr, Chairman,I think that anyone
would be foollsh to say that with hindsight one couldn't have

done better than when one ls faced with certain events at a given
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time., I think obviously we should be giving serious

congideration to the very best method of the handling of
anything of this kind that wmlght happen in the future, and
I think from that polnt of view, as the Presldent sald, we
welcome this inquiry. We welcomé a fulli disclosuré as far
as we could, from the peoint of view of responsibllities
and coordination. I thank you for your patience here
today.

The Chairman. I want to thank you for your patlence
and your frankness and candor. I think you and your assoclates,
Secretary Dillon and Mr. Bohlen, have been most cooperative
in this whole hearing. I like to think that out of this
one, ags you knou, rather pet project of mine 1s that the
State Department ltself be glven greater prestige and
authorlty in conirolling and coordinating all matters relating
to our foreign velations,

As I have tried in the case, for example, one recent
example was the control of the black market in Turkey. I think
your Department, the Department of State, ought to have more
authorlity than we have 1n the past accorded it. I am sure
that some of our troubles do not relate to anyfault onyour
part, but to the sort of Institutlonal practices that have
grown up and people assuming authority to make'statements
without you or wlthout consulting you and the Department.

I feel at thls stage of the proceedings that this may be one
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of the good things that will come out of theze hearings,
that the prestlge and authority of the State Deparcment
Wwill be enhanced.

Secretary Herter. Thank you.

The Chairman. Thank you very much.

Senator Gore. Could I Joln you in commending the
Secretary and his asslstants for their candor and theilr
patience and their diligence here today.

Secretary Herter. Thank you.

Senator Wiley. May I also join you the third time
by saying In my humble opinion the evidence and the statement
ywhmade and the statement that Diilon made and the President's
Peech shows conclusively that the break-up of the Summit -
Conference was due to Khrushchev and no other cause.

The Chalrman. Thank you very much, Mre. Secretary.

The Commlittee 1s adjourned until next Tuesday.

(Whereupon, at 5:55 p.m., the Committee recessed; to

reconvene at 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, May 31, 1960.)
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